



**Qualification Specification for:** 

OCN NI Level 3 Award in Creative Arts and Digital Technologies > Qualification No: 603/2325/5

OCN NI Level 3 Extended Certificate in Creative Arts and Digital Technologies → Qualification No: 603/3321/2

OCN NI Level 3 Diploma in Creative Arts and Digital Technologies > Qualification No: 603/0241/0



# **Qualification Regulation Information**

### **OCN NI Level 3 Award in Creative Arts and Digital Technologies**

Qualification Number:	603/2325/5
-----------------------	------------

Operational start date:	01 September 2017
Operational end date:	30 June 2030
Certification end date:	30 June 2033

### **OCN NI Level 3 Certificate in Creative Arts and Digital Technologies**

Qualification Number:	601/6359/8
Operational start date: Operational end date:	01 July 2015 30 June 2030
Certification end date:	30 June 2033

# OCN NI Level 3 Extended Certificate in Creative Arts and Digital Technologies

Qualification Number: 603/3321/2

Operational start date:	15 June 2018
Operational end date:	30 June 2030
Certification end date:	30 June 2033

# **OCN NI Level 3 Diploma in Creative Arts and Digital Technologies**

Operational start date:	01 September 2016
Operational end date:	30 June 2030
Certification end date:	30 June 2033

Qualification operational start and end dates indicate the lifecycle of a regulated qualification. The operational end date is the last date by which learners can be registered on a qualification. Learners have up to 3 years after this date to complete the qualification and claim their certificate.

All OCN NI regulated qualifications are published to the Register of Regulated Qualifications (<u>http://register.ofqual.gov.uk/</u>). This site shows the qualifications and awarding organisations regulated by CCEA Regulation and Ofqual.



# **OCN NI Contact Details**

Open College Network Northern Ireland (OCN NI) Sirius House 10 Heron Road Belfast BT3 9LE

 Phone:
 028 90463990

 Web:
 www.ocnni.org.uk



# Foreword

This document explains OCN NI's requirements for the delivery and assessment of the following regulated qualifications:

- ightarrow OCN NI Level 3 Award in Creative Arts and Digital Technologies
- $\rightarrow$  OCN NI Level 3 Certificate in Creative Arts and Digital Technologies
- → OCN NI Level 3 Extended Certificate in Creative Arts and Digital Technologies
- $\rightarrow$  OCN NI Level 3 Diploma in Creative Arts and Digital Technologies

This specification sets out:

- Qualification features
- Centre requirements for delivering and assessing the qualification
- The structure and content of the qualification
- Assessment requirements for the qualification
- OCN NI's quality assurance arrangements for the qualification
- Administration

OCN NI will notify centres in writing of any major changes to this specification. We will also publish changes on our website at <u>www.ocnni.org.uk</u>

This specification is provided online, so the version available on our website is the most up to date publication. It is important to note that copies of the specification that have been downloaded and printed may be different from this authoritative online version.



# Contents

Introduction	6
OCN NI	6
Qualification Summary	7
Sector Subject Area	7
UCAS Tariff	7
Qualifications' Aim	7
Qualifications' Objectives	7
Progression Opportunities	7
NI Entitlement Framework	8
Grading	8
Qualification Target Group	8
Entry Requirements	8
Qualification Support	8
Delivery Languages	9
Centre Requirements for Delivering the Qualification	10
Centre Recognition and Qualification Approval	10
Centre Staffing	10
Tutors	10
Assessors	10
Internal Verification	11
Structure of Qualifications	12
Unit Details	16
Quality Assurance of Centre Performance	94
External Verification	94
Standardisation	94
Administration	95
Registration	95
Certification	
Charges	
Equality, Fairness and Inclusion	
Retention of Evidence	



# Introduction

### OCN NI

Open College Network Northern Ireland (OCN NI) is a regulated Awarding Organisation based in Northern Ireland. OCN NI is regulated by CCEA Regulation to develop and award professional and technical (vocational) qualifications from Entry Level up to and including Level 5 across all sector areas. In addition, OCN NI is regulated by Ofqual to award similar qualification types in England.

#### The Regulated Qualifications Framework: an overview

The Regulated Qualifications Framework (RQF) was introduced on 1<sup>st</sup> October 2015: the RQF provides a single framework for all regulated qualifications.

#### **Qualification Level**

The level indicates the difficulty and complexity of the knowledge and skills associated with any qualification. There are eight levels (Levels 1-8) supported by three 'entry' levels (Entry 1-3).

#### **Qualification Size**

Size refers to the estimated total amount of time it could typically take to study and be assessed for a qualification. Size is expressed in terms of Total Qualification Time (TQT), and the part of that time typically spent being taught or supervised, rather than studying alone, is known as Guided Learning Hours (GLH).



# **Qualification Summary**

**Sector Subject Area** 

9.1 Performing Arts

# **UCAS Tariff**

The OCN NI Level 3 Certificate in Creative Arts and Digital Technologies qualification is recognised by UCAS, with 8 points allocated.

The OCN NI Level 3 Extended Certificate in Creative Arts and Digital Technologies qualification is recognised by UCAS, with 16 points allocated.

The OCN NI Level 3 Diploma in Creative Arts and Digital Technologies qualification is recognised by UCAS, with 32 points allocated. The allocation to the Diploma is comparable to a Grade C at A Level.

# **Qualifications' Aim**

The creative and digital technologies sectors are recognised as growth areas within the economy. The OCN NI Creative Arts and Digital Technologies qualifications have been designed to meet emerging skills requirements in these sectors. The qualifications have been designed to offer a wide range of options mirroring the careers and occupations available within these sectors.

# **Qualifications' Objectives**

The OCN NI Level 3 suite of qualifications in Creative Arts and Digital Technologies has been designed to reflect the skills and knowledge required to undertake activities that fall under the creative arts and digital technology sectors including:

- $\rightarrow$  the use of technology within creative arts
- $\rightarrow$  working within the creative industries
- $\rightarrow$  creative skills and techniques

#### **Progression Opportunities**

The OCN NI Level 3 Award/Certificate/Extended Certificate/Diploma in Creative Arts and Digital Technologies allows for progression within the suite and to further learning in creative arts and digital technologies or related areas and/or into employment.



### **NI Entitlement Framework**

The Department of Education sets out the minimum number and range of courses a school should offer at Key Stage 4 and Post-16. The Entitlement Framework (EF) is the Post-14 curriculum which puts the needs of pupils first. It aims to provide access for pupils to a broad and balanced curriculum to enable them to reach their full potential no matter which school they attend or where they live.

The Entitlement Framework is designed to ensure equity and access to educational opportunities for all learners and enables schools to offer a broad and balanced, economically relevant curriculum to meet the needs and aspirations of all pupils. It will guarantee that all pupils have access to a minimum number of courses at Key Stage 4 and Post-16, of which at least one third must be general and one third applied.

The OCN NI Level 3 Diploma in Creative Arts and Digital Technologies has been approved by the Department of Education and added to the NIEFQAN file.

For further information visit: https://www.education-ni.gov.uk/articles/qualifications

### Grading

Grading for these qualifications is pass/fail.

#### **Qualification Target Group**

These qualifications are targeted at individuals who wish to develop the required technical and creative skills and knowledge to progress to further training or employment within a wide range of creative industries.

#### **Entry Requirements**

Learners must be at least 14 years of age. There are no formal entry requirements. It would be expected that learners have an interest or previous experience in this area as well as the necessary communication and ICT skills to be able to complete assessment at this level.

#### **Qualification Support**

A Qualification Support pack is available for OCN NI centres within the login area of the OCN NI website (<u>https://www.ocnni.org.uk/my-account/</u>), which includes additional support for teachers, eg planning and assessment templates, guides to best practice, etc.



# **Delivery Languages**

These qualifications are available in English only at this time. If you wish to offer the qualifications in Welsh or Irish (Gaeilge) then please contact OCN NI who will review demand and provide as appropriate.



# **Centre Requirements for Delivering the Qualification**

# **Centre Recognition and Qualification Approval**

New and existing OCN NI recognised centres must apply for and be granted approval to deliver the qualification prior to the commencement of delivery.

# **Centre Staffing**

Centres are required to have the following roles in place as a minimum, although a member of staff may hold more than one role\*:

- Centre contact
- Programme Co-ordinator
- Tutor
- Assessor
- Internal Verifier

\*Note: A person cannot be an internal verifier for their own assessments.

#### **Tutors**

Tutors delivering the qualification should be occupationally competent, qualified to at least one level higher than the qualification and have a minimum of one year's experience in the area they are teaching.

#### Assessors

The qualifications are assessed within the centre and are subject to OCN NI's quality assurance processes. Units are achieved through internally set, internally assessed, and internally verified evidence.

#### Assessors must:

- be occupationally competent, qualified to at least one level higher than the qualification and have a minimum of one year's relevant experience in the area they are assessing
- have direct or related relevant experience in assessment
- assess all assessment tasks and activities



# **Internal Verification**

OCN NI qualifications must be scrutinised through the centre's internal quality assurance processes as part of the recognised centre agreement with OCN NI. The centre must appoint an experienced and trained centre internal verifier whose responsibility is to act as the internal quality monitor for the verification of the delivery and assessment of the qualifications.

The centre must agree a working model for internal verification with OCN NI prior to delivery of the qualifications.

#### Internal Verifiers must:

- have at least one year's occupational experience in the areas they are internally verifying
- attend OCN NI's internal verifier training

Internal verifiers are required to:

- support tutors and assessors
- sample assessments according to the centre's sampling strategy
- ensure tasks are appropriate to the level being assessed
- maintain up-to-date records supporting the verification of assessment and learner achievement



# Structure of Qualifications

### Level 3 Award in Creative Arts and Digital Technologies

Learners must complete a minimum of 6 credits from any of the optional units.

Total Qualification Time (TQT) for this qualification:	60 hours
Minimum Guided Learning Hours (GLH) for this qualification:	30 hours

#### Level 3 Certificate in Creative Arts and Digital Technologies

Learners must complete a minimum of 13 credits from any of the optional units.

Total Qualification Time (TQT) for this qualification:	130 hours
Minimum Guided Learning Hours (GLH) for this qualification:	85 hours

#### Level 3 Extended Certificate in Creative Arts and Digital Technologies

Learners must complete a minimum of 30 credits from any of the optional units.

Total Qualification Time (TQT) for this qualification:	300 hours
Minimum Guided Learning Hours (GLH) for this qualification:	187 hours

#### Level 3 Diploma in Creative Arts and Digital Technologies

Learners must complete a minimum of 54 credits from any of the optional units.

Total Qualification Time (TQT) for this qualification:	540 hours
Guided Learning Hours (GLH) for this qualification:	378 hours



# **Summary Table of Units**

In delivering the following units, where the term 'a range of' has been used in the assessment criteria a minimum of three examples will be required.

Unit Reference Number	OCN NI Unit Code	Unit Title	ΤQΤ	Credit Value	GLH	Level
<u>F/507/3047</u>	CBC443	Composition	80	8	54	Three
<u>R/616/2633</u>	CBD946	Event Organisation within the Fine Arts or Performing Arts	60	6	42	Three
<u>L/507/3049</u>	CBC445	Live Sound Engineering	40	4	28	Three
<u>F/507/3050</u>	CBC447	Song Writing Skills	30	3	21	Three
<u>J/507/3051</u>	CBC448	Sound Checking an Ensemble	40	4	28	Three
<u>R/507/3053</u>	CBC449	Studio Mixing	60	6	42	Three
<u>Y/507/3054</u>	CBC451	Film and Video Production	70	7	49	Three
<u>D/507/3055</u>	CBC452	Multi-track Recording	60	6	42	Three
<u>H/507/3056</u>	CBC453	Musical Ensemble Skills	60	6	36	Three
<u>K/507/3057</u>	CBC454	Sound for Moving Image	60	6	42	Three
<u>M/507/3058</u>	CBC455	Technical Sound and Audio Production	30	3	21	Three
<u>T/507/3059</u>	CBC450	Undertaking a Solo Performance	60	6	48	Three
<u>K/507/3060</u>	CBC446	Performance Realisation Skills	90	9	63	Three
<u>M/507/3061</u>	CBC456	Preparing for a Career or Further Education in the Creative Industries	40	4	28	Three
<u>T/507/3062</u>	CBC457	Using Social Media to Market and Promote Events, Products and Services	40	4	28	Three
<u>A/507/3063</u>	CBC458	Capturing, Editing and Presenting Video Sequences	40	4	28	Three



Unit Reference Number	OCN NI Unit Code	Unit Title	ΤQΤ	Credit Value	GLH	Level
<u>F/507/3064</u>	CBC459	Developing Websites	50	5	35	Three
<u>L/507/3066</u>	CBC460	Using Cameras and Accessories for Film and Video	60	6	42	Three
<u>R/507/3067</u>	CBC461	Using Imaging Software	50	5	35	Three
<u>Y/507/3068</u>	CBC462	Using Multimedia Software	40	4	28	Three
<u>H/507/3073</u>	CBC442	Capturing and Editing Audio Sequences	40	4	28	Three
<u>D/507/3069</u>	CBC549	Presentation Skills in Practice	30	3	21	Three
<u>D/616/2635</u>	CBD947	Problem Solving Skills within the Creative Arts and Digital Technology Sectors	30	3	21	Three
<u>H/616/2636</u>	CBD948	Teamwork Skills in Practice within the Creative Arts and Digital Technology Sectors	30	3	21	Three
<u>D/507/3072</u>	CBC552	Health and Safety in the Workplace	30	3	21	Three
<u>K/507/3074</u>	CBC636	Digital Fabrication	30	3	21	Three
<u>F/508/6607</u>	CBD606	Three Dimensional Modelling and Animation	100	10	70	Three
<u>J/508/6608</u>	CBD607	Location Sound Recording for Film and Video Production	60	6	42	Three
<u>L/508/6609</u>	CBD608	Developing Drawing Skills for Painting	30	3	21	Three
<u>F/508/6610</u>	CBD609	Drawing Development Methods and Skills	30	3	21	Three
<u>J/508/6611</u>	CBD610	Life Drawing	30	3	21	Three
<u>H/615/1121</u>	CBD682	Creative Writing	30	3	21	Three
<u>H/504/4513</u>	CAX208	Design Project	30	3	21	Three
<u>F/505/0917</u>	CAX014	Approaches to Digital Imaging and Printing	60	6	40	Three



Unit Reference Number	OCN NI Unit Code	Unit Title	τατ	Credit Value	GLH	Level
<u>M/504/4918</u>	CAX215	Lighting in Photography	40	4	25	Three
<u>H/504/4768</u>	CAX216	The Photographic Project	60	6	30	Three
<u>K/504/4948</u>	CAX217	Using a Film or Digital Camera	60	6	42	Three
<u>K/616/2637</u>	CBD949	Develop Photography Techniques Using Materials and Resources	30	3	21	Three
<u>K/616/2640</u>	CBD950	Photography: A Creative Approach to Picture Making	30	3	21	Three
<u>T/616/2642</u>	CBD951	Photography - Using a Camera and Accessories	20	2	14	Three
		Animation Unit	ts			
<u>Y/617/8204</u>	CBE650	Theory and Principles of Animation	40	4	28	Three
<u>K/617/8191</u>	CBE645	Create 2D Animation	140	14	98	Three
<u>M/617/8208</u>	CBE654	Render Animation	40	4	28	Three
<u>K/617/8207</u>	CBE653	Edit Animation	40	4	28	Three



# **Unit Details**

Title		Composition			
Level		Three			
Credit Value		8			
Guided Learning Hours (GLF	I)	54			
OCN NI Unit Code		CBC443			
Unit Reference No		F/507/3047			
Unit purpose and aim(s): This	s unit will enable the l	earner to unde	rstand how to create original		
musical compositions.					
Learning Outcomes		Assessment	t Criteria		
<ol> <li>Be able to identify the starting point for an original composition.</li> </ol>		<ol> <li>1.1. Explain and demonstrate how a range of aspects of musical theory and structure act as a focus for the creation of an original composition.</li> <li>1.2. Explain and demonstrate how the music technology process can act as a focus for the creation of an original composition.</li> <li>1.3. Explain and demonstrate how a project brief/theme can act as a focus for the creation of an original composition.</li> </ol>			
2. Be able to evaluate instrumentation.		<ul> <li>2.1. Evaluate instrumentation for a genre.</li> <li>2.2. Evaluate instrumentation through listening and analysis.</li> <li>2.3. Justify selection of vocal or instrumental sources for an original composition.</li> </ul>			
music.			<ul><li>3.1. Explain and evaluate the use of hook, melody and rhythm.</li><li>3.2. Create melodic and rhythmic parts for an original composition.</li></ul>		
<ol> <li>Be able to implement arr structuring techniques.</li> </ol>	angement and	analysis 4.2. Use stru compos 4.3. Create	ucturing within an original sition. arrangements in line with genre. e overall effectiveness of end		
Assessment Guidance					
The following assessment me criteria are fully covered.	ethod/s may be used	to ensure all le	arning outcomes and assessment		
Assessment Method	Definition		Possible Content		
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of docu containing work unc be assessed as evid meet required skills OR A collection of docu containing work that learner's progressio the course	lertaken to dence to outcomes ments t shows the	Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion		
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonst skill/situation select tutor or by learners,	ed by the	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log		



	learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	
Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary
Aural examination	Assessment activities based around listening stimuli, for example, aural question and answer, dictation, transcription, word and sound discrimination	Audio/video record Tutor notes / record Record of observation
E-assessment	The use of information technology to assess learner's work	Electronic portfolio E-tests



Title				sation within the Fine Arts or	
Level		Performing Arts			
Credit Value		Three 6			
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)		42			
OCN NI Unit Code	·/	CBD946			
Unit Reference No		R/616/26			
Unit purpose and aim(s): This	s unit will enable the I			rstand how to set up and run an	
event within the Fine Arts or I				·	
Learning Outcomes		Assessn	nent	Criteria	
<ol> <li>Be able to plan an event within the fine arts or performing arts sectors.</li> </ol>		<ul> <li>1.1. Summarise the purpose of an event.</li> <li>1.2. Critically compare an event in the fine arts sector to one in the performing arts.</li> <li>1.3. Summarise the issues to be considered when planning an event within the fine arts or performing arts sectors, including: <ul> <li>a) relevant legislation or regulations</li> <li>b) marketing</li> <li>c) setting up, running and post event activities</li> <li>d) roles of those involved</li> <li>e) risk assessments</li> </ul> </li> <li>1.4. Develop an event plan.</li> <li>1.5. Allocate required roles and responsibilities to run the event.</li> <li>1.6. Secure resources for the event.</li> </ul>			
2. Understand the role of the		2.1. Explain the responsibilities of the event			
	and others involved in the event within the fine arts or performing arts sectors.		<ul> <li>manager.</li> <li>2.2. Explain the roles of other stakeholders in fine arts or performing arts events and how they should communicate.</li> </ul>		
3. Be able to publicise and run an event within the fine arts or performing arts sectors.		<ul> <li>3.1. Explain and demonstrate how to produce an event publicity plan.</li> <li>3.2. Summarise the activities involved in running an event including: <ul> <li>a) conducting a risk assessment</li> <li>b) venue set up and co-ordination</li> <li>c) liaising with stakeholders and event users.</li> </ul> </li> <li>3.3. Run event in line with event plan.</li> <li>3.4. Address any issues arising from running event.</li> <li>3.5. Perform post event activities in line with event plan.</li> </ul>			
Assessment Guidance	Assessment Guidance				
The following assessment me criteria are fully covered.	ethod/s may be used	to ensure a	all le	arning outcomes and assessment	
Assessment Method	Definition			Possible Content	
Portfolio of evidence	evidence A collection of docu containing work und be assessed as evi meet required skills OR A collection of docu containing work tha		lertaken toLearner log/diarydence toPeer notesoutcomesRecord of observationRecord of discussionments		



	learner's progression through the course	
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log
Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary



Title		Live Sound	Engineering	
Level		Three		
Credit Value		4		
Guided Learning Hours (GLH	1)	28		
OCN NI Unit Code	,	CBC445		
Unit Reference No		L/507/3049		
Unit purpose and aim(s): This	s unit will enable the I	earner to unde	erstand how to perform live sound	
engineering.			·	
Learning Outcomes		Assessmen	it Criteria	
1. Be able to set optimal si	gnal to noise ratio.	noise r equipn 1.2. Demor	n the importance of optimal signal to atio and how to use sound nent to achieve this. Instrate the use of sound equipment nize signal to noise ratio.	
2. Be able to maintain a mix.		<ul> <li>2.1. Evaluate what makes a good mix.</li> <li>Maintain a mix using: <ul> <li>a) pre-fade listen (PFL)</li> <li>b) equalisation (EQ)</li> <li>c) sub-grouping</li> <li>d) digital effects</li> <li>e) auxiliary sends.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>		
3. Be able to maintain cont	act with the stage.	<ul><li>3.1. Explain the importance of monitoring the stage.</li><li>3.2. Provide performers with an optimal mix that will enhance the overall performance.</li></ul>		
<ol> <li>Be able to perform post performance activities.</li> </ol>		<ul> <li>4.1. Summarise the potential health and safety issues and equipment damage risks associated with post performance activities.</li> <li>4.2. Safely power down rig in the correct sequence.</li> <li>4.3. Break down the rig systematically.</li> <li>4.4. Describe and follow correct stowage procedures for component parts.</li> </ul>		
Assessment Guidance			i	
The following assessment more criteria are fully covered.	ethod/s may be used	to ensure all l	earning outcomes and assessment	
Assessment Method	Definition		Possible Content	
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of docu containing work und be assessed as evid meet required skills OR A collection of docu containing work tha learner's progression the course	Indertaken to vidence toLearner log/diary Peer notesIs outcomesRecord of observation Record of discussionsuments at shows theRecord of discussion		
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonst skill/situation select tutor or by learners, learners to practise skills and knowledg	ed by the to enable and apply	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log	



Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary



Title Song Writi			Skille		
	Level		Song Writing Skills Three		
Credit Value		3			
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)		21			
OCN NI Unit Code	•)	CBC447			
Unit Reference No		F/507/3050			
	s unit will enable the l		rstand how to compose songs.		
Learning Outcomes		Assessment	: Criteria		
1. Understand popular mus	-	genres a) mu b) forr			
2. Understand subject math	er in popular music.	popular a) fee	ality		
3. Understand the use of ly	rics devices.	conside songs. 3.2. Criticall	how the lyrics reinforce the musical rations in a range of popular music y compare a range of lyrical devices v they are used.		
4. Understand the use of condevices.	ompositional	<ul> <li>4.1. Explain how the compositional devices reinforce the lyrical devices in a range of popular music songs.</li> <li>4.2. Critically compare a range of compositional devices and how they are used.</li> </ul>			
Assessment Guidance		<u>.</u>			
The following assessment mo criteria are fully covered.	ethod/s may be used	to ensure all le	arning outcomes and assessment		
Assessment Method	Definition		Possible Content		
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course		Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion		
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge		Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log		
Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course		Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary		
Aural examination	Assessment activition around listening stir example, aural quest answer, dictation, tr word and sound dis	nuli, for stion and anscription,	Audio/video record Tutor notes / record Record of observation		



Title		Sound Checking an Ensemble		
Level		Three		
Credit Value		4		
Guided Learning Hours (GLH	1)	28		
OCN NI Unit Code		CBC448		
Unit Reference No	a unit utill an abla tha l	J/507/3051	unternal le sur te son du st officient	
sound checks for ensemble		learner to unde	erstand how to conduct efficient	
Learning Outcomes		Assessment	Criteria	
1. Understand how to perfo	orm a sound check.	perform 1.2. Evaluat issues a	rise the activities involved in ing a sound check. e the potential health and safety associated with performing sound and how they should be addressed.	
<ol> <li>Be able to prepare a Pul system for sound check.</li> </ol>		2.1. Choose to captu instrum 2.2. Line cho	and apply an appropriate technique are sound from a range of	
3. Be able to sound check instruments.		<ul> <li>3.1. Sound check each instrument and adjust levels appropriately including:</li> <li>a) applying appropriate Equalisation (EQ) for each instrument.</li> <li>b) applying gating/compression to instruments as appropriate</li> <li>c) apply effects appropriately</li> </ul>		
4. Be able to work with per	formers.	<ul><li>4.1. Evaluate the needs of performers identifying any associated issues and how they may be resolved.</li><li>4.2. Communicate effectively with performers.</li></ul>		
5. Be able to create a balanced mix.		<ul><li>5.1. Critically compare different mixes for a range of genres and styles.</li><li>5.2. Maintain a clear mix in line with given style/genre.</li></ul>		
Assessment Guidance				
The following assessment morther criteria are fully covered.	ethod/s may be used	to ensure all le	earning outcomes and assessment	
Assessment Method	Definition		Possible Content	
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course		Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion	
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge		Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log	



Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary
Aural examination	Assessment activities based around listening stimuli, for example, aural question and answer, dictation, transcription, word and sound discrimination	Audio/video record Tutor notes / record Record of observation
E-assessment	The use of information technology to assess learner's work	Electronic portfolio E-tests



Title	Studio Mixing			
Level	Three			
Credit Value	6			
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)	42			
OCN NI Unit Code	CBC449			
Unit Reference No	R/507/3053			
	earner to understand and apply mixing techniques			
using studio mixing desk.				
Learning Outcomes	Assessment Criteria			
1. Understand what is meant by mixing.	<ul><li>1.1. Explain what is meant by mixing and how it is used in the production of music.</li><li>1.2. Critically compare the application of mixing techniques to a range of musical types and genres.</li></ul>			
2. Be able to demonstrate mixing technique.	<ul> <li>2.1. Summarise the function and controls on a mixing desk.</li> <li>2.2. Explain and demonstrate the use of a mixing desk including: <ul> <li>a) applying mixing at appropriate times</li> <li>b) the stages of mixing</li> <li>c) creating balance in a recording in terms of pan and dynamic levels</li> <li>d) making a clean recording</li> <li>e) depth of field and stereo field</li> <li>f) how effects can be used to refine and/or modify recording</li> </ul> </li> </ul>			
3. Be able to evaluate a good mix.	<ul> <li>3.1. Analyse a musical project with respect to how appropriate mixing may improve the resultant project.</li> <li>3.2. Analyse what effects will complement the mix.</li> <li>3.3. Analyse the extent to which the end product meets the initial project outline.</li> </ul>			
Assessment Guidance				
The following assessment method/s may be used to ensure all learning outcomes and assessment				

criteria are fully covered.

Assessment Method	Definition	Possible Content
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course	Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log



Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary
Aural examination	Assessment activities based around listening stimuli, for example, aural question and answer, dictation, transcription, word and sound discrimination	Audio/video record Tutor notes / record Record of observation
E-assessment	The use of information technology to assess learner's work	Electronic portfolio E-tests



Title	Film and Video Production	
Level	Three	
Credit Value	7	
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)	49	
OCN NI Unit Code	CBC451	
Unit Reference No	Y/507/3054	
Unit purpose and aim(s): This unit will enable to lease	arner to understand and undertake Film and video	
production.		
Learning Outcomes	Assessment Criteria	
<ol> <li>Understand the film and video production process.</li> </ol>	<ol> <li>Summarise the key milestones of the film and video production process.</li> <li>Critically compare different genres of film and video and how this impacts on the production process.</li> <li>Summarise the potential health and safety issues associated with film and video production.</li> </ol>	
<ol> <li>Be able to produce pre-production materials.</li> </ol>	<ul> <li>2.1 Create pre-production materials for an original short film, or sequence of a film, in a chosen genre including: <ul> <li>a) treatment</li> <li>b) script</li> <li>c) storyboard</li> <li>d) set designs</li> <li>e) recce</li> <li>f) risk assessment</li> <li>g) daily shooting schedule</li> <li>h) crew and actor call sheets</li> </ul> </li> <li>2.2 Reflect on pre-production materials developed identifying areas for possible improvement.</li> </ul>	
3. Be able to produce production materials.	<ul> <li>3.1 Create production materials for use in an original short film, or sequence of a film, by:</li> <li>a) setting up appropriate equipment</li> <li>b) following shooting script/storyboard</li> <li>c) following safe working practices</li> <li>d) following production processes</li> <li>3.2 Reflect on production materials developed identifying areas for possible improvement.</li> </ul>	
4. Be able to develop a final version of a short	4.1 Explain the steps involved in the post	
film or sequence of a film.	<ul> <li>production process.</li> <li>4.2 Use appropriate equipment and software to edit production materials to a final version including: <ul> <li>a) editing film appropriately</li> <li>b) inclusion of transitions and / or visual effects</li> <li>c) inclusion of credits</li> <li>d) editing audio appropriately and inclusion of audio effects as required</li> </ul> </li> <li>4.3 Reflect on the post production process and final version of film developed identifying areas for possible improvement.</li> </ul>	



5. Understand the certification process.
------------------------------------------

5.1 Summarise the certification process for film and video.

#### **Assessment Guidance**

The following assessment method/s may be used to ensure all learning outcomes and assessment criteria are fully covered.

Assessment Method	Definition	Possible Content
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course	Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log
Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary
E-assessment	The use of information technology to assess learner's work	Electronic portfolio E-tests



Title		Multi-track R	ecording		
Level		Three			
Credit Value		6			
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)		42			
OCN NI Unit Code		CBC452			
Unit Reference No		D/507/3055			
recordings.	<i>Unit purpose and aim(s):</i> This unit will enable the learner to understand how to make melt-track recordings.				
Learning Outcomes		Assessment Criteria			
<ol> <li>Be able to plan a recordi</li> </ol>	ng.	multi-tra 1.2. Summa	e the steps involved in making a ack recording. arise the resources needed to make recording and develop a recording le.		
<ol> <li>Understand health and s associated with making r</li> </ol>		associa how to 2.2. Conduc	the health and safety issues ited with making recordings and conduct a risk assessment. It a risk assessment for a given ing session.		
<ol> <li>Understand the use of microphones in the recording process.</li> </ol>		in terms recordir a) mic b) app c) pic 3.2. Criticall microph recordir 3.3. Explain	y compare a range of microphones s of their application to making a ng including: crophone types plication and design k up patterns y compare the placement of nones for a range of different ng situations. how spill may be minimised or a complementary fashion.		
4. understand the recording process.		room ad process 4.2. Explain 4.3. Explain inline et recordir 4.4. Summa and dig	y compare the impact of a range of coustics on the recording s/plan. the multi-track recording process. the use of outboard equipment or ffects that are applied during the ng process. arise a range of digital processing ital effects and explain how they applied to recorded material.		
<ol> <li>Be able to record an ensemble and review the recording.</li> </ol>		ensemt 5.2. Reflect	on the process and product ing any areas that may be		
Assessment Guidance					
The following assessment method/s may be used to ensure all learning outcomes and assessment criteria are fully covered.					
Assessment Method	Definition		Possible Content		
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes		Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation		



	OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course	Record of discussion
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log
Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary
Aural examination	Assessment activities based around listening stimuli, for example, aural question and answer, dictation, transcription, word and sound discrimination	Audio/video record Tutor notes / record Record of observation
E-assessment	The use of information technology to assess learner's work	Electronic portfolio E-tests



Title		Musical Ense	mble Skills
Level		Three	
Credit Value		6	
Guided Learning Hours (GLH	I)	36	
OCN NI Unit Code		CBC453	
Unit Reference No		H/507/3056	
	s unit will enable the l	earner to unde	rstand how give a performance as
part of an ensemble.			
Learning Outcomes		Assessment Criteria	
<ol> <li>Be able to develop ense instrument.</li> </ol>	mble skills on an	<ol> <li>Perform dynamic</li> <li>Work wi consiste</li> <li>Evaluate within th a unified</li> </ol>	what is meant by ensemble skills. as part of an ensemble matching cs, timbre and articulation. ith an ensemble to produce a ent sound. e the position of individual members he ensemble in relation to achieving d sound. conducive pattern justifying
2. Be able to rehearse ensemble performance.		<ul> <li>2.1. Through rehears the mus</li> <li>2.2. Analyse together</li> <li>2.3. Reflect suggest</li> <li>2.4. Evaluate</li> </ul>	n individual practice and ensemble als apply the technical demands of sic pieces. the demands of putting the pieces r as an ensemble. on the rehearsal process and areas for possible improvement. e the health and safety issues to rigorous practice routines.
<ol> <li>Be able to give a performance of musical ensemble skills.</li> </ol>		with oth a) is to b) is e c) is w f) sho g) has mo h) lea with i) illus the j) give con	berformance of the chosen pieces er members of the ensemble that: ogether evenly balanced well articulated bws refined intonation a developed sense of pulse and vement ves room for soloistic moments hin the texture strates a successful interpretation of music es performance which hinunicates well with its audience
<ol> <li>Be able to review the performance.</li> </ol>		the perf 4.2. Summa	e own and others' contribution to ormance. rise areas of improvement for own semble performance.
Assessment Guidance			
The following assessment method/s may be used to ensure all learning outcomes and assessment criteria are fully covered.			arning outcomes and assessment
Assessment Method	Definition		Possible Content
Portfolio of evidence	containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to		Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation



	OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course	Record of discussion
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log
Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary
Aural examination	Assessment activities based around listening stimuli, for example, aural question and answer, dictation, transcription, word and sound discrimination	Audio/video record Tutor notes / record Record of observation
E-assessment	The use of information technology to assess learner's work	Electronic portfolio E-tests



Title	Sound for Moving Image	
Level	Three	
Credit Value	6	
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)	42	
OCN NI Unit Code	CBC454	
Unit Reference No	K/507/3057	
Unit purpose and aim(s): This unit will enable the I techniques used in capturing sound for film.	earner to understand the use of sound in film and	
Learning Outcomes	Assessment Criteria	
<ol> <li>Understand the relationship between sound and picture in film.</li> </ol>	<ol> <li>1.1. Critically compare the relationship of sound and picture for a range of genres and media that use moving image.</li> <li>1.2. Explain the agreed design concepts for given moving image.</li> <li>1.3. Summarise the main requirements for sound design in film.</li> <li>1.4. Analyse how design aspects of particular moving image segments impact upon sound requirements.</li> </ol>	
<ol> <li>Be able to develop a plan for sound in a short film production.</li> </ol>	<ul> <li>2.1. Develop a plan for using and recording sound in a short film production.</li> <li>2.2. Agree the production plan with others explaining how plan for sound integrates with overall film production plan.</li> </ul>	
<ol> <li>Be able to record sound for a short film production.</li> </ol>	<ul> <li>3.1. Critically compare techniques for recording and post production of sound for a range of film applications including: <ul> <li>a) compression</li> <li>b) sound formats</li> </ul> </li> <li>3.2. Use recording techniques to produce a soundtrack for a short film production.</li> <li>3.3. Monitor progress of sound requirements against the agreed plan.</li> <li>3.4. Use editing techniques for sound during post-production for a short film production.</li> </ul>	

#### **Assessment Guidance**

The following assessment method/s may be used to ensure all learning outcomes and assessment criteria are fully covered.

Assessment Method	Definition	Possible Content
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course	Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log
Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final	Record of observation Learner notes/written work



	outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary
Aural examination	Assessment activities based around listening stimuli, for example, aural question and answer, dictation, transcription, word and sound discrimination	Audio/video record Tutor notes / record Record of observation
E-assessment	The use of information technology to assess learner's work	Electronic portfolio E-tests



Titl	Title			Technical Sound and Audio Production				
Level				Three				
Credit Value				3				
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)			21					
OCN NI Unit Code			CBC455					
	Unit Reference No			M/507/3058				
	Unit purpose and aim(s): This unit will enable the learner to develop skills in sound and audio production.							
Learning Outcomes			Ass	Assessment Criteria				
1.	Understand health and s to sound and audio prod			rules re product Explain	and agree to health and safety lating to sound and audio ion. how to conduct a risk assessment ind and audio environment.			
2.	Be able to use sound an equipment.	d audio production		Critically range o equipme audio p Select,	y compare the application of a f sound and audio production ent to meet differing sound and roductions. justify and use a range of sound lio equipment for recording and			
3. Be able to develop ideas for production.		<ul> <li>3.1. Develop an idea to support production through use of recording, editing and altering sound.</li> <li>3.2. Create finished sound/audio product.</li> <li>3.3. Evaluate the development of the idea and use of techniques and identify any areas for improvement.</li> </ul>						
4.	4. Understand professional working methods.		4.1.		y compare current professional methods to own working methods.			
5. Be able to work within a group situation.			a team Explain	strate working co-operatively within situation. the importance of individual sibility within the team.				
6. Reflect on own work.		6.1.	Distingu	ish between constructive and non-				
		<ul><li>constructive feedback.</li><li>6.2. Demonstrate how to receive and respond positively to feedback from others.</li><li>6.3. Evaluate own work identifying areas for improvement.</li></ul>						
As	sessment Guidance							
	The following assessment method/s may be used to ensure all learning outcomes and assessment criteria are fully covered.							
As	Assessment Method Definition				Possible Content			
Poi	rtfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to			Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary			

	201111011	
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course	Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion
Practical	A practical demonstration of a	Record of observation
demonstration/assignment	skill/situation selected by the	Learner notes/written work



	tutor or by learners, to enable	Learner log
	learners to practise and apply	
	skills and knowledge	
Coursework	Research or projects that count	Record of observation
	towards a learner's final	Learner notes/written work
	outcome and demonstrate the	Tutor notes/record
	skills and/or knowledge gained	Learner log/diary
	throughout the course	



Title		Undertaking	a Solo Performance
Level			
Credit Value		6	
Guided Learning Hours (GLH	1)	48	
OCN NI Unit Code	,	CBC450	
Unit Reference No		T/507/3059	
<i>Unit purpose and aim(s):</i> This performance.	s unit will enable the l	earner to unde	rstand how to perform a solo
Learning Outcomes		Assessment	t Criteria
<ol> <li>Be able to demonstrate t an instrument.</li> </ol>		<ul> <li>al skills on</li> <li>1.1. Explain tuning method for chosen instrument.</li> <li>1.2. Explain and demonstrate articulation and intonation techniques using a simple piece of music.</li> <li>1.3. Explain the importance of correct posture.</li> </ul>	
2. Be able to develop good practice routines.		<ul> <li>2.1. Explain the importance of practice for improvement.</li> <li>2.2. Develop a practice schedule over a given period with input from others.</li> <li>2.3. Carry out the practice schedule.</li> <li>2.4. Evaluate own musical development.</li> </ul>	
<ol> <li>Be able to develop an ap from different periods an</li> </ol>		3.1. Critically compare two pieces which have contrasting styles or from differing periods.	
<ol> <li>Understand musical competence and performance.</li> </ol>		<ul> <li>4.1. Explain what is meant by musical competence and how it is achieved.</li> <li>4.2. Select, justify and perform two pieces giving a rounded performance showing the following: <ul> <li>a) general security of notes and rhythms</li> <li>b) suitable tempo</li> <li>c) reasonable sense of continuity</li> <li>d) prompt recovery from any slips</li> </ul> </li> </ul>	
Assessment Guidance			
The following assessment method/s may be used to ensure all learning outcomes and assessment criteria are fully covered.			
Assessment Method	Definition		Possible Content
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through		Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion

the course

Practical

demonstration/assignment

A practical demonstration of a

skill/situation selected by the

tutor or by learners, to enable

learners to practise and apply

skills and knowledge

Record of observation

Learner log

Learner notes/written work



Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary



Title		Performance	Realisation Skills	
Level		Performance Realisation Skills Three		
Credit Value		9		
Guided Learning Hours (GLF	1)	63		
OCN NI Unit Code	7	CBC446		
Unit Reference No		K/507/3060		
Unit purpose and aim(s): This performance techniques with		earner to unde	rstand and use various	
Learning Outcomes		Assessment	t Criteria	
<ol> <li>Be able to use techniques for effective realisation of productions.</li> </ol>		<ol> <li>1.1. Critically compare a range of preparation techniques for a specific production.</li> <li>1.2. Prepare for a specific production.</li> <li>1.3. Perform a given role in a specific production showing a clear understanding of the text and sub-text.</li> </ol>		
2. Be able to review own performance.		2.1. Evaluat perform 2.2. Evaluat feedbac	<ul> <li>2.1. Evaluate own contribution to the performance.</li> <li>2.2. Evaluate own contribution in response to feedback.</li> <li>2.3. Summarise areas for improvement.</li> </ul>	
3. Be able to review the rea	alisation.		rise the success of the production. which could improve the production ion.	
Assessment Guidance				
The following assessment me criteria are fully covered.	ethod/s may be used	to ensure all le	arning outcomes and assessment	
Assessment Method	Definition		Possible Content	
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through		Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion	
Practical demonstration/assignment	the course A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge		Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log	
Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course		Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary	
Aural examination	Assessment activities based around listening stimuli, for example, aural question and answer, dictation, transcription, word and sound discrimination		Audio/video record Tutor notes / record Record of observation	
E-assessment	The use of information technology to assess learner's work		Electronic portfolio	

OCN NI Level 3 Award in Creative Arts and Digital Technologies Qualification No. 603/2325/5 OCN NI Level 3 Certificate in Creative Arts and Digital Technologies Qualification No. 601/6359/8 OCN NI Level 3 Extended Certificate in Creative Arts and Digital Technologies Qualification No. 603/3321/2 OCN NI Level 3 Diploma in Creative Arts and Digital Technologies Qualification No. 603/0241/0 Updated: 29 November 2023 v1.2



		ū		
Title				a Career or Further Study in the
Level		Creative Three	e Indu	stries
Credit Value		1 nree 4		
Guided Learning Hours (GLH	)	28		
OCN NI Unit Code	7	CBC456	6	
Unit Reference No		M/507/3		
Unit purpose and aim(s): This	s unit will enable the I	earner to	unde	rstand how to plan for a career or
further study in the media sec	ctor.			
Learning Outcomes				Criteria
<ol> <li>Be able to identify emplo education opportunities in industries sector.</li> </ol>			ctor o : Sta em	ch potential opportunities within one f the creative industries in relation rting a business ployment her study
2. Be able to match creative opportunities to own pers	ve industries sector rsonal qualities. (includir a) int b) att c) ski d) rel e) ex 2.2. Summa other re followir a) sta b) ga		valuate eative cluding inte attr skil rele exp umma her re llowing star gair	e own qualities in relation to industries sector opportunities g: rests ibutes ls evant achievements erience rise sources of information and sources available to support the
3. Be able to plan own career or further study in the creative industries sector.		ow 3.2. Su rel eit pro 3.3. De wo bu stu 3.4. De	vn car umma lation ther st ogress evelop ork an usines udy in evelop	rise the elements that should be in eer or further study plan. rise relevant personal information in to the creative industries sector to art a business, gain employment or s to further study. b a portfolio of creative industries d/or expertise for use in either a s presentation, career or further terview. b own career or further study plan in n creative industries sector.
Assessment Guidance				
The following assessment me criteria are fully covered.	The following assessment method/s may be used to ensure all learning outcomes and assessment criteria are fully covered.			
Assessment Method	Definition Possible Content		Possible Content	
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR			Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion



	A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course	
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log
Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary



Title				al Media to Market and Promote	
			· · · · ·	Events, Products and Services	
Level	t Value		4	Three	
	ed Learning Hours (GLH	)	4 28		
	NI Unit Code	)	CBC457		
	Reference No		T/507/3062		
		unit will enable the l		derstand how use social media safely	
	se social media for marl			,	
	ning Outcomes			ent Criteria	
	Inderstand the opportun associated with using so		negat 1.2. Expla	ally compare the positive and tive aspects of using social media. in the risks associated with using I media and how best to minimise	
2. U	Inderstand the application	on of social media.	media indivio 2.2. Sumr orgar media 2.3. Demo media conte a) F b) E c) T d) Y e) S	ally compare how various social a sites may be used by groups, duals, businesses and organisations. marise potential risks to an nization associated with using social a for marketing or promotion. Distrate the use of various social a sites to communicate and upload int including: Facebook Blogging Witter YouTube Snapchat nstagram	
3. Be able to use social media for marketing and promotion.		3.1. Critica organ marke branc 3.2. Sumr consi camp a) n b) n c) n d) ta 3.3. Deve camp	ally compare how businesses and isations may use social media to et and promote products, services, I and/or events. narise issues that should be dered when planning a social media aign including nobile or non-mobile platforms lature of campaign lature of product, service or event arget market lop and implement a social marketing aign for a given product, service, I or event.		
	Assessment Guidance				
The following assessment method/s may be used to ensure all learning outcomes and assessment criteria are fully covered.					
	ssment Method	Definition		Possible Content	
Portfo	blio of evidence	containing work undertaken toLbe assessed as evidence toPmeet required skills outcomesR		Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion	



	learner's progression through the course	
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log
Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary
E-assessment	The use of information technology to assess learner's work	Electronic portfolio E-tests



<b>1 T</b> 10				
Title	Capturing, Editing and Presenting Video Sequences		diting and Presenting Video	
Level		Three		
Credit Value		4		
Guided Learning Hours (GLH	)	28		
OCN NI Unit Code		CBC458		
Unit Reference No		A/507/3063		
Unit purpose and aim(s): This present video sequences.	s unit will enable the l	earner to unde	rstand how to capture, edit and	
Learning Outcomes		Assessment Criteria		
<ol> <li>Be able to use video hard to capture sequences.</li> </ol>	dware and software	seque 1.2. Explai use in captur compa 1.3. Select combi softwa 1.4. Analys format 1.5. Identif inform 1.6. Store approj in line	mine the content needed for nces, and when to originate it n potential compatibility issues and put devices and video software to e information and avoid any atibility issues. : and use an appropriate nation of input device and video are to record sequences se the impact of file size and file t will have on saving sequences. y when to use different types of ation coding and compression. and retrieve sequences using priate file formats and compression, with local guidelines and ntions where available.	
<ol> <li>Be able to use video software tools and techniques to combine and edit sequences.</li> </ol>		<ol> <li>Select and use appropriate video software tools to mark up and edit sequences.</li> <li>Organise and combine information for sequences in line with any copyright constraints.</li> <li>Explain how copyright constraints affect use of own and others' information.</li> </ol>		
<ol> <li>Be able to play and present video sequences.</li> </ol>		playbac 3.2. Select a of video device 3.3. Select, be adju present 3.4. Evaluat	te the quality of sequences and how to respond to quality issues	
Assessment Guidance				
The following assessment me criteria are fully covered.	The following assessment method/s may be used to ensure all learning outcomes and assessment criteria are fully covered.			
Assessment Method	Definition Possible Content		Possible Content	
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR		Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion	



	A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course	
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log



Title	Developing Websites
Level	Three
Credit Value	5
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)	35
OCN NI Unit Code	CBC459
Unit Reference No	F/507/3064
Unit purpose and aim(s): This unit will enable the le	earner to understand how to develop websites and
include content such as video.	•
Learning Outcomes	Assessment Criteria
<ol> <li>Be able to create structures and styles for websites.</li> </ol>	<ol> <li>Plan and create website to include:         <ul> <li>a) page content</li> <li>b) templates and layout</li> <li>c) navigation.</li> </ul> </li> <li>Create, select and use styles to keep the appearance of webpages consistent and easily understood.</li> <li>Explain any compatibility issues between combinations of input device and video software.</li> <li>Select and use an appropriate combination of input device and video software to optimise the recording of information.</li> <li>Select and use an appropriate combination of hardware and software to originate and develop new content for sequences.</li> <li>Analyse and explain the impact file size and file format will have, including when to use information coding and compression.</li> <li>Describe issues that need to be taken into account including:         <ul> <li>a) copyright</li> <li>b) access</li> </ul> </li> <li>Store and retrieve files in line with local guidelines and conventions where available.</li> <li>Store and retrieve sequences using appropriate file formats and compression, in line with local guidelines and conventions where available.</li> </ol>
2. Be able to use software tools to prepare	2.1. Prepare content for webpages so that it is
content for websites.	ready for editing and formatting.
	2.2. Organise and combine information required
	for webpages.
	2.3. Select and use appropriate editing and formatting toobniques to aid both clarity
	formatting techniques to aid both clarity
	and navigation. 2.4. Select and use appropriate development
	techniques to link information across
	pages. 2.5. Select and use appropriate video software
	tools and techniques to mark-up and edit
	sequences to achieve required effects.
	2.6. Change the file formats appropriately for
	content.
	oontont.



	2.7. Use IT tools to check webpages are fit for purpose making any necessary amendments.
3. Be able to publish websites.	<ul> <li>3.1. Select and use appropriate testing methods to check that all elements of websites are working making any necessary amendments.</li> <li>3.2. Select and use an appropriate programme to upload and publish the website.</li> <li>3.3. Select and use an appropriate combination of video playback software and display device to suit the file format.</li> <li>3.4. Present sequences effectively by exploiting the features and settings of the playback software and display duility and meet needs.</li> <li>3.5. Respond appropriately to problems with multiple page websites.</li> </ul>
Assessment Guidance	

The following assessment method/s may be used to ensure all learning outcomes and assessment criteria are fully covered.

Assessment Method	Definition	Possible Content		
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course	Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion		
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log		



Tit	e				as and Accessories for Film and
		Video			
Level		Level	3		
-	edit Value		6		
	ided Learning Hours (GLH)		42		
	N NI Unit Code		CBC4		
	it Reference No		L/507		
	<i>it purpose and aim(s):</i> This u oducing still images and video		learner	to demo	onstrate the skills involved in
Le	arning Outcomes		Asse	Assessment Criteria	
1.	Understand safe photograp making practice.	bhic and video	i i		rise and use safe working practices roduction of photographic images eo.
2.	Know how to use the feature	res of a camera	2.1.	Summa	rise camera structure, layout and
	and accessories.			controls	in terms of camera usage.
					/ compare camera settings for
					video and photographic subjects.
					the use of a range of accessories to
					ith the recording of still images and
			video including: a) tripods using both integral and external spirit levels		
			b) sound recording equipment		
				ting sources	
3. Be able to use a camera and accessories to		1		/ compare how to frame images and	
capture images and video.				best effect.	
	suptiles integes and vides.		3.2.	Critically	compare the use of lighting
			sources in photography and video.		
			<ul><li>3.3. Classify lighting techniques into those for sources and those for subjects.</li><li>3.4. Critically compare the options for capturing</li></ul>		
			sound when creating video.		
			3.5. Use camera features and accessories to		
					still images and video.
4.	Be able to transfer images	and video from a			how to and use appropriate
	camera.				e to transfer and/or download d content from a camera.
					and produce video segments with
					nd/or photographs.
As	Assessment Guidance				
	The following assessment method/s may be used to ensure all learning outcomes and assessment criteria are fully covered.				arning outcomes and assessment
As	sessment Method	Definition			Possible Content
Po	rtfolio of evidence	A collection of do	ocumen	ıts	Learner notes/written work
	containing work				Learner log/diary
		to be assessed a			Peer notes
		to up out up out in a	akilla		Descended at the sum of the set

outcomes

OR

to meet required skills

A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course Record of observation

Record of discussion



Practical demonstration /assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log
Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary
Oral Examination	An assessor poses questions to the learner in spoken form. The student has to be the question in such a way as to demonstrate sufficient knowledge of the subject in order to pass the exam	Tutor notes / record Audio / Video record. Record of observation



Title			a Softwara	
Title Level		Using Imaging Software		
Credit Value		5	Three	
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)		35		
OCN NI Unit Code		CBC461		
Unit Reference No		R/507/3067		
Unit purpose and aim(s): This	s unit will enable the l	earner to use i	maging software.	
Learning Outcomes		Assessmen	t Criteria	
<ol> <li>Be able to obtain, insert and combine information for images.</li> </ol>		<ol> <li>Identify images needed to meet requirements.</li> <li>Demonstrate how to obtain, input and prepare images to meet needs.</li> <li>Explain what copyright and other constraints apply to the use of images.</li> <li>Use appropriate techniques to organise and combine information from different sources and forms.</li> <li>Explain the context in which the images will be used.</li> <li>Critically compare different file formats uses for saving images for different presentation methods.</li> <li>Store and retrieve files effectively, in line with local guidelines and conventions</li> </ol>		
2. Be able to use imaging activers to create		where available. 2.1. Explain the technical factors affecting		
2. Be able to use imaging software to create, manipulate and edit images.		<ul> <li>images that need to be taken into account.</li> <li>2.2. Select, justify and use suitable techniques to create images.</li> <li>2.3. Use guidelines and dimensioning tools appropriately to enhance precision.</li> <li>2.4. Select, justify and use appropriate tools and techniques to manipulate and edit images.</li> <li>2.5. Use IT tools to check images meet needs and make corrections as necessary.</li> <li>2.6. Identify and respond to quality problems with images to ensure they meet needs.</li> </ul>		
Assessment Guidance	- 41 1/ h	to on other official		
The following assessment me criteria are fully covered.	ethod/s may be used	to ensure all le	arning outcomes and assessment	
Assessment Method	Definition		Possible Content	
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course		Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion	



Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log



<b></b>		
Title	Using Multimedia Software	
	Three 4	
Credit Value Guided Learning Hours (GLH)	28	
OCN NI Unit Code	CBC462	
Unit Reference No	Y/507/3068	
<i>Unit purpose and aim(s):</i> This unit will enable the le		
software.		
Learning Outcomes	Assessment Criteria	
<ol> <li>Be able to plan multimedia products.</li> <li>Be able to obtain, input and combine</li> </ol>	<ol> <li>Evaluate the type of multimedia outcome required including necessary specifications.</li> <li>Select and use appropriate techniques to plan and communicate the content, design and layout of multimedia products.</li> <li>Develop the design layout for multimedia outcomes including interactive and non- interactive elements.</li> <li>Explain how the different elements of the content will be sourced and how they will relate in the design layout.</li> <li>Plan the use of interactive features and transitions to meet needs.</li> <li>Analyse how copyright and other constraints affect use of own and others' information.</li> <li>Select and use an appropriate combination</li> </ol>	
content to build multimedia outcomes.	<ul> <li>of input device, software and input techniques to obtain and input content for multimedia outcomes.</li> <li>2.2. Combine information from different sources and types to provide multimedia outcomes.</li> <li>2.3. Select and use appropriate software to write and compress multimedia files.</li> <li>2.4. Store and retrieve multimedia files effectively, in line with local guidelines and conventions where available.</li> <li>2.5. Explain when and why to use different file formats and file compression for saving multimedia files.</li> </ul>	
<ol> <li>Be able to use multimedia software tools to edit and format multimedia content.</li> </ol>	<ul> <li>3.1. Select and use appropriate techniques to edit and format multimedia outcomes.</li> <li>3.2. Manipulate images and graphic elements accurately.</li> <li>3.3. Use IT tools to check content and quality making corrections as required.</li> </ul>	
<ol> <li>Be able to play and present multimedia outcomes.</li> </ol>	<ul> <li>4.1. Explain what combination of display device and software to use for displaying different multimedia file formats.</li> <li>4.2. Select and use appropriate software for displaying multimedia outcomes.</li> <li>4.3. Select and use appropriate navigation techniques and playback controls to suit the files.</li> <li>4.4. Select and adjust the display settings of the software and display device to present outcomes effectively.</li> </ul>	



## Assessment Guidance

The following assessment method/s may be used to ensure all learning outcomes and assessment criteria are fully covered.

Assessment Method	Definition	Possible Content
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course	Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log



Title	Presentation Skills in Pra		Skills in Practice
Level	Three		
Credit Value		3	
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)		21	
OCN NI Unit Code		CBC549	
Unit Reference No		D/507/3069	
Unit purpose and aim(s): This un audiences.	it will enable the lea	arner to underst	and how to present to differing
Learning Outcomes		Assessment	Criteria
<ol> <li>Be able to source information and plan a presentation.</li> <li>Be able to deliver a structured presentation to an audience.</li> </ol>		relevant audience presenta the prese 1.3. Prepare needs of 1.4. Develop presenta 2.1. Deliver a a) cle b) pre c) ex	the appropriateness of a range of tion tools and equipment for use in
		e) eff f) ad pre 2.2. Demons ensuring a) spea b) ada c) use pres pres d) liste	ectively concluded dresses constraints for the esentation such as time trate awareness of audience you: ak audibly of pace a range of support materials, sentation tools and equipment to sent effectively n and respond to questions
		3.1. Evaluate for impro	the presentation identifying areas vement.
Assessment Guidance			
The following assessment metho criteria are fully covered.	d/s may be used to	ensure all lear	ning outcomes and assessment
Assessment Method Definition Possible Content			Possible Content

Assessment Method	Definition	Possible Content
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course	Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log



Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary
Aural examination	Assessment activities based around listening stimuli, for example, aural question and answer, dictation, transcription, word and sound discrimination.	Audio/video record Tutor notes / record Record of observation



Title		Problem Solving Skills within the Creative Arts and Digital Technology Sectors	
Level		Three	
Credit Value		3	
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)		21	
OCN NI Unit Code		CBD947	
Unit Reference No		D/616/2635	
Unit purpose and aim(s): This un methodologies within the creative			
Learning Outcomes		Assessment	
<ol> <li>Be able to select a problem solving methodology appropriate to the creative arts and digital technology sectors.</li> </ol>		<ol> <li>1.1. Critically compare a range of problem solving methodologies in terms of appropriateness for use in following sectors:         <ul> <li>a) creative arts</li> <li>b) digital technologies</li> </ul> </li> <li>1.2. Use an appropriate methodology to identify and scope a problem within the creative arts and digital technology sectors and select an appropriate problem solving methodology.</li> <li>1.3. Summarise sources of information or support available to for the methodology chosen.</li> </ol>	
<ol> <li>Be able to develop an action plan to address a problem.</li> </ol>		<ul> <li>2.1. Produce and evaluate an action plan to address the problem.</li> <li>2.2. Implement and monitor the action plan ensuring appropriate information is maintained including: <ul> <li>a) timeframe</li> <li>b) associated risks</li> <li>c) resources</li> </ul> </li> </ul>	
<ol> <li>Be able to review effectiveness of action plan.</li> </ol>		<ol> <li>Produce a report on effectiveness of solution including identifying areas that might improve solution.</li> </ol>	
Assessment Guidance			
The following assessment methor criteria are fully covered.	od/s may be used to	o ensure all lear	ning outcomes and assessment
Assessment Method	Definition		Possible Content
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcome OR A collection of documents containing work that shows learner's progression throug the course		Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge		Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log
Coursework	skills and knowledge Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course		Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary



Title	Teamwork Skills in Practice within the Creative Arts and Digital Technology Sectors	
Level	Three	
Credit Value	3	
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)	21	
OCN NI Unit Code	CBD948	
Unit Reference No	H/616/2636	
Unit purpose and aim(s): This unit will enable the		
responsibilities within a team and how to contribu digital technology sectors.		
Learning Outcomes	Assessment Criteria	
<ol> <li>Understand the different roles and responsibilities within a team.</li> </ol>	<ul> <li>1.1. Critically compare different roles and responsibilities within teams, in the following: <ul> <li>a) creative arts</li> <li>b) digital technologies</li> </ul> </li> <li>1.2. Explain own role and responsibilities within a team in a given situation.</li> </ul>	
2. Be able to contribute to the setting of team	2.1. Explain the process used to set team	
and own goals.	goals. 2.2. Negotiate and evaluate a team contract	
	with the team. 2.3. Carry out a team activity in one of the	
	following areas: a) creative arts b) digital technologies 2.4. Critically compare communications	
	<ul> <li>2.4. Childrandy compare communications</li> <li>channels used in:         <ul> <li>a) creative arts</li> <li>b) digital technologies</li> </ul> </li> </ul>	
	<ul><li>2.5. Demonstrate how to communicate appropriately within the team in a range of situations.</li></ul>	
<ol> <li>Be able to communicate effectively within a team.</li> </ol>	3.1. Explain why it is important to allow others to express their view/responses without interruption.	
	3.2. Analyse the effectiveness of own and other's team communication skills used in	
	at least one of the following areas: a) creative arts	
4. Be able to develop a plan to improve co-	b) digital technologies4.1. Critically compare when co-operation is	
<ol> <li>Be able to develop a plan to improve co- operation within a team.</li> </ol>	<ul> <li>a) creative arts</li> <li>b) digital technologies</li> </ul>	
	<ul><li>4.2. Produce an action plan to develop own and others' team working.</li></ul>	
5. Be able to review team performance.	<ul> <li>5.1. Summarise skills brought to a team activity by:</li> <li>a) self</li> </ul>	
	<ul> <li>b) others</li> <li>5.2. Explain how to interpret feedback from team members and how to incorporate feedback on activity</li> </ul>	
	feedback on activity. 5.3. Evaluate activity identifying areas for improvement.	



## Assessment Guidance

The following assessment method/s may be used to ensure all learning outcomes and assessment criteria are fully covered.

Assessment Method	Definition	Possible Content
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course	Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log



Title		Health and Safety in the Workpl	ace
Level		Three	
Credit Value		3	
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)		21	
OCN NI Unit Code		CBC552	
Unit Reference No		D/507/3072	
Unit purpose and aim(s): This ur	nit will enable the le	rner to understand health and sa	afety in the
workplace.			
Learning Outcomes		Assessment Criteria	
<ol> <li>Understand health and safe and policy at work.</li> <li>2. Be able to maintain a safe v environment in own workpla</li> </ol>	vorking	<ul> <li>1.1. Research and explain the personnel responsible for l in own workplace.</li> <li>1.2. Summarise the Health and and policy for own organist following: <ul> <li>a) Health and Safety at V relevant to your region</li> <li>b) Control of Substances Health Regulations reregion.</li> <li>c) Manual Handling</li> </ul> </li> <li>2.1 Summarise ways of maintaworking environment and policy for own organist following: <ul> <li>a) Health and Safety at V relevant to your region</li> <li>b) Control of Substances Health Regulations refers to your region.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>	Health and Safety I Safety procedures ation including the Work Legislation n. Hazardous to levant to your
		<ul> <li>procedures.</li> <li>2.2 Evaluate potential risks with workplace.</li> <li>2.3 Explain the purpose and u equipment and/or clothing</li> <li>2.4 Summarise own organisatic evacuation procedures.</li> <li>2.5 Explain the process and be assessment.</li> <li>2.6 Carry out a risk assessment workplace.</li> </ul>	se of safety to minimise risk. ion's emergency enefits of a risk
3. Understand own responsibility for Health and Safety in own workplace.		<ul> <li>3.1. Explain own responsibility safety including:</li> <li>a) correct procedures for</li> <li>b) correct procedures for screen equipment</li> <li>c) control of substances health</li> <li>d) maintaining a safe envand others</li> </ul>	r manual handling the use of display hazardous to
Assessment Guidance			
The following assessment methor criteria are fully covered.	The following assessment method/s may be used to ensure all learning outcomes and assessment criteria are fully covered.		
Assessment Method	Definition	Possible Conte	nt
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of do containing work u be assessed as e meet required ski OR A collection of do containing work t learner's progress the course	ndertaken to vidence to ls outcomes suments at shows the	/ vation



Practical	A practical demonstration of a	Record of observation
demonstration/assignment	skill/situation selected by the	Learner notes/written work
	tutor or by learners, to enable	Learner log
	learners to practise and apply	
	skills and knowledge	
Coursework	Research or projects that	Record of observation
	count towards a learner's final	Learner notes/written work
	outcome and demonstrate the	Tutor notes/record
	skills and/or knowledge gained	Learner log/diary
	throughout the course	- ·
Aural examination	Assessment activities based	Audio/video record
	around listening stimuli, for	Tutor notes / record
	example, aural question and	Record of observation
	answer, dictation, transcription,	
	word and sound discrimination.	



7.0			
Title			d Editing Audio Sequences
Level Credit Value		Three 4	
Guided Learning Hours (GLH	1	28	
OCN NI Unit Code	)	CBC442	
Unit Reference No		H/507/3073	
	unit will enable the le		rstand how to capture and edit
audio sequences.			
Learning Outcomes		Assessment	t Criteria
<ol> <li>Be able to use audio har to capture sequences.</li> </ol>	dware and software	device a compat 1.2. Use inp softwar 1.3. Explain of file si 1.4. Identify informa 1.5. Store a file form	correct combinations of input and audio software which minimise ibility issues. ut devices and built-in audio e to capture audio sequences. various audio file formats, impact ze and format. when to use different types of tion coding and compression. nd retrieve sequences using pre-set nats, in line with local guidelines and tions where available.
2. Be able to use audio software tools.		<ul> <li>2.1. Critically compare audio editing software.</li> <li>2.2. Cut and paste sequences to meet needs.</li> <li>2.3. Combine information of different forms or from different sources, in line with copyright constraints.</li> <li>2.4. Explain the impact of copyright constraints on using others' information.</li> </ul>	
<ol> <li>Be able to play and present audio sequences.</li> </ol>		<ul><li>3.1. Explain the features and constraints of playback software and display devices.</li><li>3.2. Identify and use appropriate playback</li></ul>	
		software and audio devices for use. 3.3. Select, justify and use appropriate	
		to play 3.4. Select a	ation of software and display device back audio sequences. and adjust playback and display s so that sequences are presented needs.
Assessment Guidance			
The following assessment me criteria are fully covered.	ethod/s may be used	to ensure all le	arning outcomes and assessment
Assessment Method	Definition		Possible Content
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course		Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion



Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log



Title		Distitut Cabrie	ation
Title Level		Digital Fabrica	
Credit Value		3	
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)		21	
OCN NI Unit Code		CBC636	
Unit Reference No		K/507/3074	
		arner to unders	tand how to design and fabricate
using digital fabrication equipm	ent.		
Learning Outcomes		Assessment	Criteria
<ol> <li>Understand health and saf associated with digital fabr</li> </ol>		<ul><li>1.1 Explain the health and safety issues associated with digital fabrication.</li><li>1.2 Demonstrate the application of health and safety practice relating to digital fabrication</li></ul>	
2. Use software to create designs.		<ul> <li>safety practice relating to digital fabrication.</li> <li>2.1 Use 2D design software to create complex polygonal shapes to meet requirements of specific design brief.</li> <li>2.2 Use software features to produce designs that can be fabricated.</li> <li>2.3 Save files in appropriate formats.</li> <li>2.4 Explain the use of machines for various schemes of work.</li> </ul>	
3. Be able to fabricate a design. Assessment Guidance		<ul> <li>3.1. Demonstrate the use of machine specific Computer Aided Manufacture (CAM) software.</li> <li>3.2. Demonstrate the fabrication of a design that utilises more than one machine/process.</li> <li>3.3. Demonstrate the application of health and safety practice relating to digital fabrication.</li> </ul>	
The following assessment meth criteria are fully covered.	nod/s may be used to	o ensure all lear	rning outcomes and assessment
Assessment Method	Definition		Possible Content
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course		Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge		Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log
Coursework	skills and knowledge           Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course		Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary



Title		Three Dimens	sional Modelling and Animation
Level		Three	
Credit Value		10	
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)		70	
OCN NI Unit Code		CBD606	
Unit Reference No		F/508/6607	
Unit purpose and aim(s): This uni dimensional (3D) model, add text Learners will develop basic skills	ure, add lights, an	d animate a sim	
Learning Outcomes		Assessment	Criteria
<ol> <li>Know about the developmen animation.</li> <li>Be able to apply 3D modellin</li> </ol>	•	compute	v evaluate the development of er 3D animation. and demonstrate how 2D drawings
the building of a simple 3D s	cene.	can mad	e into 3D models using polygons.
<ol> <li>Be able to build a simple 3D add rigging.</li> <li>Be able to use 3D character</li> </ol>		techniqu model. 3.2. Produce 3.3. Apply ar characte 3.4. Create a 3.5. Add text 3.6. Produce scene.	compare how different modelling es can be used to create a 3D a 3D modelling from 2D drawings. mature rig to a 3D modelled er. a simple 3D scene. ures to a 3D model. a 3D lighting set up within a 3D a simple 3D animation using a
techniques and render final 3D animation.		camera 4.2. Produce 4.3. Critically techniqu 4.4. Render	move. a simple 3D character animation. review possible rendering les. out a 3D animation.
5. Understand Health and Safe and safe studio practice.	5. Understand Health and Safety procedures and safe studio practice.		t identified Health and Safety res. trate safe studio practice.
<ol> <li>Be able to reflect on own per modelling and animation.</li> </ol>			on own performance in producing 3D and animation identifying possible r improvement.
Assessment Guidance			
The following assessment methor criteria are fully covered.	d/s may be used to	o ensure all lear	ning outcomes and assessment
Assessment Method	Definition		Possible Content
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to		Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary

	be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course	Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log



Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary
E-assessment	The use of information technology to assess learner's work	Electronic portfolio E-tests



Title		Location Sou Production	nd Recording for Film and Video
		Three	
Level Credit Value			
		6 42	
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)		·	
OCN NI Unit Code		CBD607	
Unit Reference No	:4 : II	J/508/6608	4
sound recording on location for p		arner to unders	stand and demonstrate the practice of
Learning Outcomes		Assessment	Criteria
<ol> <li>Understand the properties o their application and the bas recording high quality sound</li> </ol>	sic principles of	terms of 1.2. Explain sound ro 1.3. Explain	a range of types of microphones in f their characteristics and application. what is meant by sync and non-sync ecording. the impact of recording levels, gain ortion on a recording.
2. Be able to develop a plan fo recording in a short producti			ut a recce during the pre-production
		in a sho	a plan for using and recording sound rt production.
		to gain a explana	production plans with others in order agreement on plan including an tion of how plan for sound integrates arall production plan.
<ol> <li>Be able to record sound for a short production.</li> </ol>		3.1. Set up a external during p sound re	a field mixer and boom or other I recording device and monitor audio production, ensuring high quality ecording.
		its appli 3.3. Evaluate and the	the application of atmospherics and cation in a production. e the importance of professionalism main roles of individuals involved in a
			ation recording techniques within a ion team to complete a short
<ol> <li>Be able to reflect on own an performance.</li> </ol>	d others'	a produ	on your role as sound recordist within ction team identifying areas for Il and team improvement.
		4.2. Reflect	on other team members' performance production team identifying areas for
Assessment Guidance			
The following assessment methor criteria are fully covered.	od/s may be used to	o ensure all lea	rning outcomes and assessment
Assessment Method	Definition		Possible Content
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to		Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes

the course

OR

meet required skills outcomes

A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through Record of observation

Record of discussion



Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the	Record of observation Learner notes/written work
demonstration/assignment	tutor or by learners, to enable	Learner log
	learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	
Coursework	Research or projects that	Record of observation
	count towards a learner's final	Learner notes/written work
	outcome and demonstrate the	Tutor notes/record
	skills and/or knowledge gained	Learner log/diary
	throughout the course	
Aural examination	Assessment activities based	Audio/video record
	around listening stimuli, for	Tutor notes / record
	example, aural question and	Record of observation
	answer, dictation, transcription,	
	word and sound discrimination.	



Title		Deve	eloning Dr	awing Skills for Painting	
Level			Three		
Credit Value		3			
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)		21			
OCN NI Unit Code		CBD	608		
Unit Reference No		L/50	8/6609		
<i>Unit purpose and aim(s):</i> This u	nit will enable the le	arner t	o develop	o drawing skills for painting.	
Learning Outcomes			essment		
1. Be able to use drawing me		1.1.	Analyse media.	the application and use different	
2. Be able to use different dra	wing surfaces.	2.1.		how and when to use different surfaces.	
		2.2.		trate the use of different drawing	
3. Understand the use of draw preparation and production		3.1.		the use of drawing in the preparation uction of paintings.	
			Use drav	ving skills and processes related to the to give drawing depth	
5. Be able to use sketchbooks	5.	5.1.		porting research and notation when and collecting information.	
		5.2.	Use infor sketchbc	mation from research and painting	
			developr		
<ol><li>Understand the relationship between drawing and painting.</li></ol>		6.1. Analyse the relationship between drawing and painting, in practical and historical terms.			
7. Be able to adhere to Health and Safety		7.1.		t identified Health and Safety	
procedures.		procedures. 7.2. Demonstrate best practice in working safely within studio environment.			
Assessment Guidance					
The following assessment meth criteria are fully covered.	od/s may be used to	o ensu	re all lear	ning outcomes and assessment	
Assessment Method	Definition			Possible Content	
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course		aken to ce to comes nts ows the	Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion	
Practical demonstration/assignment	skill/situation selected by the		y the enable	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log	



Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary
E-assessment	The use of information technology to assess learner's work	Electronic portfolio E-tests



Tate		Due i D	Lawrence Mathe		
Title		Drawing Development Methods and Skills			
Level		Three			
Credit Value			3		
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)			21		
OCN NI Unit Code		CBD609			
Unit Reference No		F/508/6610			
Unit purpose and aim(s): This unit will enable the learner to develop different methods.					
Learning Outcomes		Assessment Criteria			
1. Be able to use different drawing media.		1.1. Evaluate	how and when to use different		
		drawing media.			
		1.2. Demonstrate the use of different drawing			
		media.			
2. Be able to draw on different	surfaces.		how and when to use different		
		drawing surfaces.			
			2.2. Demonstrate the use of different drawing		
		surfaces	-		
3. Be able to draw three-dimen			the following:		
mass, space, structure and s	scale.	,	e-dimensional form		
		b) mass			
		c) spa	ce		
		d) stru	d) structure		
		e) scal			
			e-dimensional form, mass, space,		
			and scale, using drawing materials		
		and mark-making techniques.			
4. Be able to make drawings at varying tempos.		4.1. Demons	4.1. Demonstrate making drawings at different		
		paces and over varying lengths of time.			
5. Be able to use sketchbooks.		5.1. Use supporting research and notation to			
		evaluate, select and collect information.			
		5.2. Evaluate and select items from research and			
		sketchbooks to influence and develop own			
		drawing work.			
6. Understand Health and Safety procedures		6.1. Carry out identified Health and Safety			
and safe studio practice.		procedu			
			trate best practice in working safely		
		in a studio environment.			
Assessment Guidance					
The following assessment method/s may be used to ensure all learning outcomes and assessment					
criteria are fully covered.					
Assessment Method	Definition		Possible Content		
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of do		Learner notes/written work		
	containing work ι		Learner log/diary		
be assessed as e meet required ski OR			Peer notes		
		Ils outcomes	Record of observation		
			Record of discussion		
	A collection of do	cuments			
containing work the learner's progress the course		hat shows the			
		sion through			
		-			
Practical	A practical demonstration of a		Record of observation		
demonstration/assignment	skill/situation selected by the		Learner notes/written work		
tutor or by learne			Learner log		
learners to practis			Ŭ		
skills and knowled					



Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary
E-assessment	The use of information technology to assess learner's work	Electronic portfolio E-tests



7.0						
Title		Life Drawing				
		Three				
Credit Value		3				
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)		21				
OCN NI Unit Code		CBD610				
Unit Reference No		J/508/6611				
Unit purpose and aim(s): This unit will provide the learner with an introduction to different life drawing approaches.						
Learning Outcomes		Assessment Criteria				
1. Recognise different life drawing approaches.		<ol> <li>1.1. Critically compare different approaches to life drawing.</li> <li>1.2. Summarise the principles underpinning life drawing.</li> <li>1.3. Demonstrate shadowing, proportion and shape.</li> </ol>				
<ol> <li>Understand proportion when drawing from a life model.</li> </ol>		<ul> <li>2.1. Draw using a live model incorporating:</li> <li>a) proportions</li> <li>b) shadowing</li> <li>c) shape</li> <li>d) line</li> <li>e) tone</li> </ul>				
<ol> <li>Understand the importance of maintaining a personal sketchbook.</li> </ol>		<ul> <li>3.1 Critically analyse the importance of maintaining a personal sketchbook.</li> <li>3.2 Compile and use a personal sketchbook to demonstrate development of technique and ideas.</li> </ul>				
4. Understand safe working p	ractices.	4.1 Demonstrate best practice in working safely.				
		<u>.</u>				
Assessment Guidance						
The following assessment meth criteria are fully covered.	The following assessment method/s may be used to ensure all learning outcomes and assessment criteria are fully covered.					
Assessment Method	Definition		Possible Content			
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course		Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion			
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge		Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log			
Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course		Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary			
E-assessment	The use of information technology to assess learner's work		Electronic portfolio E-tests			



T:11			0	41	
Title Level			Creative Writing		
Credit Value		3	Three 3		
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)		21			
	N NI Unit Code		CBD	682	
	Reference No			5/1121	
	<i>purpose and aim(s):</i> This un tive writing.	it will enable the le	arner	to unders	tand how to produce a piece of
Lea	rning Outcomes		Ass	essment	Criteria
<ol> <li>Be able to produce a piece of writing that is clear and has structured direction and shape.</li> </ol>		1.2.	direction Produce a) cle b) cle c) sh Evaluate	e the importance of clear, structured and shape in creative writing. a piece of writing that shows: ear editing ear structure and direction ape e own work in respect of structure, and shape.	
2.	<ol> <li>Be able to produce a piece of writing that demonstrates appropriate form and genre for a given media.</li> </ol>		2.1 2.2	Produce a) for b) a c c) ap Justify u	a piece of writing that shows: m chosen genre propriateness for given media se of form and chosen genre for work n to technical and aesthetic
<ol> <li>Be able to produce a piece of writing that conveys ideas, mood, plot, narrative and dialogue.</li> </ol>		3.1 3.2	piece of a) ide b) mo c) plo d) na e) dia Explain t	explaining strategies employed a writing that conveys: eas bod ot rrative alogue the development of the work from ea to completion.	
4. Be able to evaluate own and others' work.		4.3	improved Evaluate aesthetic further d Evaluate and cons	e own work identifying areas for ment. e own work in relation to technical and c elements identifying areas for evelopment. e the work of others offering critical structive feedback. the work of others in relation to own	
Ass	Assessment Guidance				
	The following assessment method/s may be used to ensure all learning outcomes and assessment criteria are fully covered.				
Ass	essment Method	Definition			Possible Content
Port	folio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course		aken to ce to comes nts ows the	Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion



Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log
Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary
E-assessment	The use of information technology to assess learner's work	Electronic portfolio E-tests



Title		Docian Drois	at	
Title Level		Design Project Level 3		
Credit Value		3		
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)		21		
OCN NI Unit Code		CAX208		
Unit Reference No		H/504/4513		
			and collate relevant information to	
meet a design brief. Learners wi				
working environment. Learners	will also use sketc	hbooks/journal	s to show a development of ideas,	
work independently and evaluate	e their work with re	eference to the	ir peers and other artists.	
Learning Outcomes		Assessment		
<ol> <li>Be able to source research design project.</li> </ol>	material for a	and bac	a comprehensive range of materials kground information. and annotate research material and	
		backgro	und information in a logical order. e research material and background	
		informat	tion in a logical order. t material with regard to the design	
		brief.		
2. Be able to plan work to mee using project management		2.1. Work in and dea	dependently to identify objectives	
gj		2.2. Produce	work in an organised and onal manner whilst adhering to	
		deadline	es.	
		process	e work through stages of the design in relation to project management	
3. Be able to translate researc	h and design		ust objectives accordingly. tchbooks and/or journals to show	
development work into a fin		the development of personal and diverse ideas.		
		<ul><li>3.2. Produce work which demonstrates originality and individuality in the generation</li></ul>		
		of creative design ideas through all stages of production and design.		
4. Be able follow a project plan	n to meet a	4.1. Work independently to research, plan and		
design brief.		complete a design project to meet a brief. 4.2. Demonstrate logical progression in the		
		development of their ideas. 4.3. Evaluate own work in relation to a project		
		brief:		
		a) one to one b) with a group		
5. Be able to reflect on own de	esign work.	5.1. Analyse own work through all stages of development illustrating aesthetic, technical		
		and the	oretical considerations	
		5.2. Evaluate own work with reference to that of peer group and other artists		
6. Understand Health and Safety procedures.		6.1. Carry out identified Health and Safety procedures		
			strate safe studio practice	
Assessment Guidance				
The following assessment methor criteria are fully covered.	od/s may be used	to ensure all le	arning outcomes and assessment	
Assessment Method	Definition		Possible Content	
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of do containing work			
			Loamor log/alary	



	to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course	Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion
Practical demonstration /assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log
Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary
Oral Examination	An assessor poses questions to the learner in spoken form. The learner has to be the question in such a way as to demonstrate sufficient knowledge of the subject in order to pass the exam	Tutor notes / record Audio / Video record. Record of observation



Title	Approaches to Digital Imaging and Printing
Level	Level 3
Credit Value	6
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)	40
OCN NI Unit Code	CAX014
Unit Reference No	F/505/0917

*Unit purpose and aim(s):* This unit will enable learners to explain approaches to digital imaging and printing and to use images to meet specific needs. Learners will evaluate techniques used and demonstrate safe working practices.

Learning Outcomes		Assessment Criteria		
1.	Understand approaches to digital imaging and printing.	<ol> <li>Explain different approaches to digital imaging and printing for a wide range of situations.</li> </ol>		
2.	Be able to apply digital images and printing techniques.	<ul> <li>2.1. Use digital images to achieve a range of complex solutions.</li> <li>2.2. Produce digital prints from digital imaging sources to achieve a range of complex solutions.</li> <li>2.3. Evaluate techniques used in digital images and prints.</li> </ul>		
3.	Understand safe working procedures.	3.1. Demonstrate safe working practice.		

#### Assessment Guidance

Assessment Method	Definition	Possible Content
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course	Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion
Practical demonstration /assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log
Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary
Oral Examination	An assessor poses questions to the learner in spoken form. The learner has to be the question in such a way as to demonstrate sufficient knowledge of the subject in order to pass the exam	Tutor notes / record Audio / Video record. Record of observation



Title		Lighting in Photography			
Level		Level 3			
Credit Value		4			
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)		25			
OCN NI Unit Code		CAX215			
Unit Reference No		M/504/4918			
			and and critically compare		
			nd light metering techniques, use and evaluate		
lighting sources to meet	specific goals. Learners v	vill also identify	ill also identify and use safe working practices.		
Learning Outcomes		Assessment			
1. Understand lighting	sources for		light sources for photography.		
photography.		1.2. Critically compare light sources for			
		photogr			
2. Know about light m	etering techniques.		light metering techniques for light		
		sources			
			light metering techniques for light		
		subjects			
3. Be able to use light	ng sources for		ting sources to photograph different		
photography.			s to meet identified goals.		
			e lighting for photography.		
4. Understand safe ph	otographic practice.		safe working practices in lighting for		
		photogr			
			e working practices in lighting for		
		photogr	aphy.		
Assessment Guidance					
The following assessment method/s may be used to ensure all learning outcomes and assessment					
The following assessme	nt method/s may be used	to ensure all le	arning outcomes and assessment		
criteria are fully covered		to ensure all le	arning outcomes and assessment		
criteria are fully covered Assessment Method		to ensure all le	earning outcomes and assessment Possible Content		
criteria are fully covered	Definition           A collection of definition	ocuments			
criteria are fully covered Assessment Method	A collection of de containing work	ocuments undertaken	Possible Content Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary		
criteria are fully covered Assessment Method	A collection of de containing work to be assessed a	ocuments undertaken as evidence	Possible Content Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes		
criteria are fully covered Assessment Method	A collection of de containing work to be assessed a to meet required	ocuments undertaken as evidence	Possible Content Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation		
criteria are fully covered Assessment Method	A collection of de containing work to be assessed a to meet required outcomes	ocuments undertaken as evidence	Possible Content Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes		
criteria are fully covered Assessment Method	Definition           A collection of decontaining work to be assessed at to meet required outcomes           OR	ocuments undertaken as evidence skills	Possible Content Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation		
criteria are fully covered Assessment Method	Definition           A collection of decontaining work to be assessed at to meet required outcomes           OR           A collection of decourted outcomes	ocuments undertaken as evidence skills ocuments	Possible Content Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation		
criteria are fully covered Assessment Method	Definition           A collection of decontaining work to be assessed at to meet required outcomes           OR           A collection of decontaining work	ocuments undertaken as evidence skills ocuments that shows	Possible Content Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation		
criteria are fully covered Assessment Method	Definition           A collection of decontaining work to be assessed a to meet required outcomes OR A collection of decontaining work the learner's pro	ocuments undertaken as evidence skills ocuments that shows gression	Possible Content Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation		
criteria are fully covered Assessment Method Portfolio of evidence	Definition           A collection of decontaining work to be assessed a to meet required outcomes OR A collection of decontaining work the learner's pro through the court	ocuments undertaken as evidence skills ocuments that shows gression se	Possible Content Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion		
criteria are fully covered Assessment Method Portfolio of evidence Practical demonstration	Definition           A collection of decontaining work to be assessed a to meet required outcomes OR A collection of decontaining work the learner's pro through the court A practical demo	ocuments undertaken as evidence skills ocuments that shows gression se onstration of a	Possible Content Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion		
criteria are fully covered Assessment Method Portfolio of evidence	Definition           A collection of decontaining work to be assessed a to meet required outcomes OR A collection of decontaining work the learner's pro through the court A practical demo skill/situation sel	ocuments undertaken as evidence skills ocuments that shows gression se onstration of a ected by the	Possible Content Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion		
criteria are fully covered Assessment Method Portfolio of evidence Practical demonstration	Definition           A collection of decontaining work to be assessed a to meet required outcomes OR A collection of decontaining work the learner's pro through the court A practical demo skill/situation sel tutor or by learner	ocuments undertaken as evidence skills ocuments that shows gression se onstration of a ected by the ers, to enable	Possible Content Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion		
criteria are fully covered Assessment Method Portfolio of evidence Practical demonstration	Definition           A collection of decontaining work to be assessed a to meet required outcomes OR A collection of decontaining work the learner's pro through the court A practical demo skill/situation sel tutor or by learned learners to pract	ocuments undertaken as evidence skills ocuments that shows gression se onstration of a ected by the ers, to enable ise and apply	Possible Content Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion		
criteria are fully covered Assessment Method Portfolio of evidence Practical demonstration /assignment	Definition           A collection of decontaining work to be assessed at to meet required outcomes           OR           A collection of decontaining work the learner's prothrough the court           A practical demonstration selection of by learners to practise skills and knowled	ocuments undertaken as evidence skills ocuments that shows gression se onstration of a ected by the ers, to enable ise and apply edge	Possible Content         Learner notes/written work         Learner log/diary         Peer notes         Record of observation         Record of discussion         Record of observation         Learner notes/written work         Learner notes/written work         Learner log		
criteria are fully covered Assessment Method Portfolio of evidence Practical demonstration	Definition           A collection of decontaining work to be assessed at to meet required outcomes           OR           A collection of decontaining work the learner's prothrough the court           A practical demonstration selection of by learners to practiskills and knowled	ocuments undertaken as evidence skills ocuments that shows gression se onstration of a ected by the ers, to enable ise and apply edge jects that	Possible Content         Learner notes/written work         Learner log/diary         Peer notes         Record of observation         Record of discussion         Record of observation         Learner notes/written work         Learner log         Record of observation		
criteria are fully covered Assessment Method Portfolio of evidence Practical demonstration /assignment	Definition           A collection of decontaining work to be assessed at to meet required outcomes           OR           A collection of decontaining work the learner's prothrough the court           A practical demonstration selection of by learners to practiskills and knowled	ocuments undertaken as evidence skills ocuments that shows gression se onstration of a ected by the ers, to enable ise and apply edge jects that learner's final	Possible Content         Learner notes/written work         Learner log/diary         Peer notes         Record of observation         Record of discussion         Record of observation         Learner notes/written work         Learner log         Record of observation         Learner log         Record of observation         Learner log         Record of observation         Learner log		
criteria are fully covered Assessment Method Portfolio of evidence Practical demonstration /assignment	Definition           A collection of decontaining work to be assessed at to meet required outcomes           OR           A collection of decontaining work the learner's prothrough the court           A practical demonstration set tutor or by learner to pract skills and knowled           Research or procount towards a outcome and de	ocuments undertaken as evidence skills ocuments that shows gression se onstration of a ected by the ers, to enable ise and apply edge jects that learner's final monstrate the	Possible Content         Learner notes/written work         Learner log/diary         Peer notes         Record of observation         Record of discussion         Record of observation         Learner notes/written work         Learner log         Record of observation         Learner notes/written work         Learner notes/written work         Learner notes/written work         Tutor notes/record		
criteria are fully covered Assessment Method Portfolio of evidence Practical demonstration /assignment	Definition           A collection of decontaining work to be assessed at to meet required outcomes           OR           A collection of decontaining work the learner's prothrough the court           A practical demonstration of by learners to practise skills and knowled           Research or procount towards a outcome and de skills and/or knowled	ocuments undertaken as evidence skills ocuments that shows gression se onstration of a ected by the ers, to enable ise and apply edge jects that learner's final monstrate the wledge	Possible Content         Learner notes/written work         Learner log/diary         Peer notes         Record of observation         Record of discussion         Record of observation         Learner notes/written work         Learner log         Record of observation         Learner log         Record of observation         Learner log         Record of observation         Learner log		
criteria are fully covered Assessment Method Portfolio of evidence Practical demonstration /assignment Coursework	Definition           A collection of decontaining work to be assessed at to meet required outcomes           OR           A collection of decontaining work to be assessed at to meet required outcomes           OR           A collection of decontaining work the learner's prothrough the court through the court for a practical demons skill/situation selection of by learners to pract skills and knowled           Research or procount towards a outcome and de skills and/or knogained throughout through throughout through throughout through through throughout through throughout throughout throughout throughout through thro	ocuments undertaken as evidence skills ocuments that shows gression se onstration of a ected by the ers, to enable ise and apply edge jects that learner's final monstrate the wledge ut the course	Possible Content         Learner notes/written work         Learner log/diary         Peer notes         Record of observation         Record of discussion         Record of observation         Learner notes/written work         Learner log         Record of observation         Learner notes/written work         Learner notes/written work         Learner notes/written work         Tutor notes/record         Learner log/diary		
criteria are fully covered Assessment Method Portfolio of evidence Practical demonstration /assignment	Definition           A collection of decontaining work to be assessed at to meet required outcomes           OR           A collection of decontaining work to be assessed at to meet required outcomes           OR           A collection of decontaining work the learner's prothrough the court           A practical demonstration selevation of by learners to practise and knowled           Research or procount towards a outcome and de skills and/or knogained througho	ocuments undertaken as evidence skills ocuments that shows gression se onstration of a ected by the ers, to enable ise and apply edge jects that learner's final monstrate the wledge ut the course se questions	Possible Content         Learner notes/written work         Learner log/diary         Peer notes         Record of observation         Record of discussion         Record of observation         Learner notes/written work         Learner log         Record of observation         Learner notes/written work         Learner notes/written work         Learner notes/written work         Tutor notes/record         Learner log/diary         Tutor notes / record Audio / Video		
criteria are fully covered Assessment Method Portfolio of evidence Practical demonstration /assignment Coursework	Definition           A collection of decontaining work to be assessed at to meet required outcomes           OR           A collection of decontaining work to be assessed at to meet required outcomes           OR           A collection of decontaining work the learner's protection of through the court           A practical demonstration self tutor or by learner to pract skills and knowled           Research or procount towards a outcome and de skills and/or kno gained througho           An assessor post to the learner in	ocuments undertaken as evidence skills ocuments that shows gression se onstration of a ected by the ers, to enable ise and apply edge jects that learner's final monstrate the wledge ut the course se questions spoken form.	Possible Content         Learner notes/written work         Learner log/diary         Peer notes         Record of observation         Record of discussion         Record of observation         Learner notes/written work         Learner log         Record of observation         Learner notes/written work         Learner notes/written work         Learner notes/written work         Tutor notes/record         Learner log/diary         Tutor notes / record Audio / Video         record.		
criteria are fully covered Assessment Method Portfolio of evidence Practical demonstration /assignment Coursework	Definition           A collection of decontaining work to be assessed at to meet required outcomes           OR           A collection of decontaining work to be assessed at to meet required outcomes           OR           A collection of decontaining work the learner's protection of through the court           A practical demonstration self tutor or by learner to pract skills and knowled           Research or procount towards a outcome and de skills and/or kno gained througho           An assessor post to the learner in The learner has	ocuments undertaken as evidence skills ocuments that shows gression se onstration of a ected by the ers, to enable ise and apply edge jects that learner's final monstrate the wledge ut the course se questions spoken form. to be the	Possible Content         Learner notes/written work         Learner log/diary         Peer notes         Record of observation         Record of discussion         Record of observation         Learner notes/written work         Learner log         Record of observation         Learner notes/written work         Learner notes/written work         Learner notes/written work         Tutor notes/record         Learner log/diary         Tutor notes / record Audio / Video		
criteria are fully covered         Assessment Method         Portfolio of evidence         Practical demonstration         /assignment         Coursework	Definition           A collection of decontaining work to be assessed at to meet required outcomes           OR           A collection of decontaining work to be assessed at to meet required outcomes           OR           A collection of decontaining work the learner's prothrough the court           A practical demonstration selever tutor or by learner to pract skills and knowled           Research or procount towards a outcome and de skills and/or kno gained througho           An assessor post to the learner in The learner has question in such	ocuments undertaken as evidence skills ocuments that shows gression se onstration of a ected by the ers, to enable ise and apply edge jects that learner's final monstrate the wledge ut the course es questions spoken form. to be the a way as to	Possible Content         Learner notes/written work         Learner log/diary         Peer notes         Record of observation         Record of discussion         Record of observation         Learner notes/written work         Learner log         Record of observation         Learner notes/written work         Learner notes/written work         Learner notes/written work         Tutor notes/record         Learner log/diary         Tutor notes / record Audio / Video         record.		
criteria are fully covered         Assessment Method         Portfolio of evidence         Practical demonstration         /assignment         Coursework	Definition           A collection of decontaining work to be assessed at to meet required outcomes           OR           A collection of decontaining work to be assessed at to meet required outcomes           OR           A collection of decontaining work the learner's prothrough the court           A practical demonstrate still/situation selection of by learner to pract skills and knowled           Research or procount towards a outcome and de skills and/or kno gained througho           An assessor post to the learner in The learner has question in such demonstrate sufficient of the	ocuments undertaken as evidence skills ocuments that shows gression se onstration of a ected by the ers, to enable ise and apply edge jects that learner's final monstrate the wledge ut the course ses questions spoken form. to be the a way as to ficient	Possible Content         Learner notes/written work         Learner log/diary         Peer notes         Record of observation         Record of discussion         Record of observation         Learner notes/written work         Learner log         Record of observation         Learner notes/written work         Learner notes/written work         Learner notes/written work         Tutor notes/record         Learner log/diary         Tutor notes / record Audio / Video         record.		
criteria are fully covered Assessment Method Portfolio of evidence Practical demonstration /assignment Coursework	Definition           A collection of decontaining work to be assessed at to meet required outcomes           OR           A collection of decontaining work to be assessed at to meet required outcomes           OR           A collection of decontaining work the learner's prothrough the court           A practical demonstration selever tutor or by learner to pract skills and knowled           Research or procount towards a outcome and de skills and/or kno gained througho           An assessor post to the learner in The learner has question in such	ocuments undertaken as evidence skills ocuments that shows gression se onstration of a ected by the ers, to enable ise and apply edge jects that learner's final monstrate the wledge ut the course ses questions spoken form. to be the a way as to ficient e subject in	Possible Content         Learner notes/written work         Learner log/diary         Peer notes         Record of observation         Record of discussion         Record of observation         Learner notes/written work         Learner log         Record of observation         Learner notes/written work         Learner notes/written work         Learner notes/written work         Tutor notes/record         Learner log/diary         Tutor notes / record Audio / Video         record.		



Title	The Photographic Project
Level	Level 3
Credit Value	6
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)	30
OCN NI Unit Code	CAX216
Unit Reference No	H/504/4768

*Unit purpose and aim(s):* This unit will enable learners to carry out, analyse and evaluate research for a photographic project. Learners will identify appropriate resources and use suitable presentational formats. Learners will also demonstrate safe working practices.

Le	arning Outcomes	Assessment Criteria		
1.	Understand research for a complex photographic project.	<ol> <li>1.1. Identify a subject for a photographic project.</li> <li>1.2. Carry out research for a photographic project.</li> <li>1.3. Analyse and evaluate research for a photographic project.</li> </ol>		
2.	Be able to produce a photographic project.	<ul> <li>2.1. Identify photographic resources to complete a complex photographic project.</li> <li>2.2. Produce a range of photographic images to meet self-determined goals.</li> <li>2.3. Identify and employ presentational forms for a photographic project.</li> <li>2.4. Analyse and evaluate the photographic project.</li> </ul>		
3.	Understand photographic practice and health and safety procedures.	3.1. Identify and use safe working practices in a photographic project.		

#### **Assessment Guidance**

Assessment Method	Definition	Possible Content
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course	Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion
Practical demonstration /assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log
Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary
Oral Examination	An assessor poses questions to the learner in spoken form. The learner has to be the question in such a way as to demonstrate sufficient knowledge of the subject in order to pass the exam	Tutor notes / record Audio / Video record. Record of observation



Title Using a Film or Digital Camera				
Level		Using a Film or Digital Camera		
Credit Value		Level 3 6		
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)		42	•	
OCN NI Unit Code		CAX217		
Unit Reference No		K/504/4948		
Unit purpose and aim(s): This u	nit will enable lear		and critically compare	
			ra characteristics and produce a	
		ice, analyse an	d evaluate their photographs and	
demonstrate safe working pract	ices.			
Learning Outcomes		Assessment Criteria		
1. Understand contextual pers			1.1. Identify contextual perspectives and	
approaches to photography	/.	approaches to photography.		
			y compare contextual perspectives	
			proaches to photography.	
2. Understand the characteris			the characteristics of different systems and related photographic	
systems and photographic	equipment.	equipme		
			nera characteristics to produce a	
			t visual outcome.	
3. Be able to control a camera	a for specified		e photographs for a variety of	
outcomes.			d purposes.	
			and evaluate photographic activity	
		and out		
			e photographic activity and	
4 . Do oblo to omploy photogra	anhia practica	outcome		
4. Be able to employ photogra	apriic practice.	<ol> <li>Identify safe working photographic practices.</li> </ol>		
		4.2. Use safe photographic working practices.		
Assessment Guidance				
The following assessment meth criteria are fully covered.	od/s may be used	to ensure all le	arning outcomes and assessment	
Assessment Method	Definition		Possible Content	
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of do	ocuments	Learner notes/written work	
	containing work	undertaken	Learner log/diary	
	to be assessed a		Peer notes	
	to meet required	skills	Record of observation	
	outcomes		Record of discussion	
	OR A collection of do	oumonto		
	containing work			
	the learner's pro			
through the cour				
Practical demonstration			Record of observation	
		ected by the	Learner notes/written work	
	tutor or by learne		Learner log	
learners to pract				
	skills and knowle			
Coursework	Research or pro		Record of observation	
	count towards a		Learner notes/written work	
	final outcome an demonstrate the		Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary	
			i eamerion/niarv	
			Learner log/alary	
	knowledge gaine		Loumon log/dary	



The learner has to be the question in such a way as to demonstrate sufficient knowledge of the subject in order to pass the exam	Oral Examination	to the learner in spoken form. The learner has to be the question in such a way as to demonstrate sufficient knowledge of the subject in	Tutor notes / record Audio / Video record. Record of observation



Title			tography Techniques Using
	Materials and		Resources
	Three 3		
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)	Credit Value		
OCN NI Unit Code		21 CBD949	
Unit Reference No		K/616/2637	
Unit purpose and aim(s): This ur	nit will enable the l		rstand and use materials and
resources in the production of ph			
Learning Outcomes		Assessment	Criteria
<ol> <li>Understand the requirement photographic process.</li> <li>Understand how to use mat resources to develop photog techniques.</li> </ol>	ss. 1 1 use materials and 2 photography 2 2		how available materials may be techniques for your photography rise the resources and skills d for the photographic process g: ls and equipment terials otographic techniques rise how to maintain a safe working ment for the photographic process. oropriate tools and equipment in the aphic process. and use materials, techniques and es in the photographic process. rise reasons for your choice of es, materials and techniques. strate technical skills required to
		make effective use of materials, techniques and resources for your photography items. 2.5. Maintain a safe working environment.	
Assessment Guidance			
The following assessment method/s may be used to criteria are fully covered.		to ensure all le	arning outcomes and assessment
Assessment Method	Definition		Possible Content
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course		Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of Reco a skill/situation selected by Learr		Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log



Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary
E-assessment	The use of information technology to assess learners' work	Electronic portfolio E-tests



Title	Photography: A Creative Approach to Picture Making
Level	Three
Credit Value	3
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)	21
OCN NI Unit Code	CBD950
Unit Reference No	K/616/2640
<i>Unit purpose and aim(s):</i> This unit will enable the photographic project.	learner to understand how to plan and undertake a
Learning Outcomes	Assessment Criteria
<ol> <li>Be able to plan and respond to a photographic assignment.</li> </ol>	<ul> <li>1.1. Develop a plan to respond to a given photographic assignment including the following: <ul> <li>a) a description of intended approach</li> <li>b) a strategy to monitor tasks</li> </ul> </li> </ul>
<ol> <li>Be able to conduct research to inform own picture making.</li> </ol>	2.1. Research and evaluate the picture making of a recognised photographer.

		2.0.	photographers can inform own picture making
3.	Be able to undertake a negotiated approach to a picture making assignment.		Explain why a negotiated approach to a picture making assignment may result in better photographic outcome.
			given assignment in order that the picture making process may best achieve the creative outcomes required of the assignment. Use a range of equipment appropriate to the
			context of the assignment work.
4.	Know how to put together images.	4.1.	Use a selection of images for presentation giving reasons for selection.
5.	Understand Health and Safety procedures and safe studio practice.	5.1.	Carry out identified Health and Safety procedures and safe studio practice (also applicable on shoots/location).

#### **Assessment Guidance**

Assessment Method	Definition	Possible Content
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course	Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion



Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log
Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary



Title	Photography - Using a Camera and Accessories
Level	Three
Credit Value	2
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)	14
OCN NI Unit Code	CBD951
Unit Reference No	T/616/2642
Unit purpose and aim(s): This unit will enable the laccessories.	earner to understand how to use a camera and
Learning Outcomes	Assessment Criteria
<ol> <li>Be able to use a camera and accessories to create images.</li> </ol>	<ol> <li>Summarise camera structure, layout and controls in terms of camera usage.</li> <li>Use camera controls.</li> <li>Explain the use of recording media in either film or digital cameras.</li> <li>Illustrate camera settings for different subjects.</li> <li>Demonstrate the use of a camera and tripod including:         <ul> <li>a) set up</li> <li>b) use at varying heights</li> <li>c) using an integral or external spirit level</li> </ul> </li> </ol>
2. Know how to frame and light an image.	<ul><li>2.1. Explain how to frame an image.</li><li>2.2. Explain the importance of light and lighting in framing an image and how this may be achieved.</li></ul>
<ol> <li>Be able to transfer images from a camera for printing.</li> </ol>	<ul><li>3.1. Select images to be transferred.</li><li>3.2. Transfer camera images.</li><li>3.3. Prepare images for printing.</li><li>3.4. Print photographic images.</li></ul>
4. Know about Health and Safety procedures.	<ul><li>4.1. Identify Health and Safety issues.</li><li>4.2. Follow correct Health and Safety procedures.</li></ul>
Assessment Outdanses	

#### Assessment Guidance

Assessment Method	Definition	Possible Content
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course	Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log



Title		Theory and F	Principles of Animation
Level		Three	
Credit Value	4		
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)		28	
OCN NI Unit Code		CBE650	
Unit Reference No		Y/617/8204	
Unit purpose and aim(s): This ur the principles of animation and h			rstand the underpinning theory and creation of an animation.
Learning Outcomes		Assessmen	t Criteria
<ol> <li>Understand origins and dev animation.</li> <li>Be able to apply the principle to the constitution of a basis or</li> </ol>	es of animation	animati 1.2. Criticall used fo 1.3. Define animati 1.4. Demon persiste may be 1.5. Demon used to and exp animati 2.1. Explain	y compare tools and techniques r 2D, 3D and stop motion animation. what is meant by the term on. strate how a thaumatrope utilises ence of vision and explain how this applied to animation. strate how a short flipbook can be provide an illusion of movement olain how this may be applied to on. each of the 12 principles of
to the creation of a basic animation.		2.2. Create three of 2.3. Review areas fo	on and their overall purpose. a basic animation utilising at least f the principles of animation. animation identifying possible or improvement taking into account ck from stakeholders.
3. Be able to evaluate own per	3. Be able to evaluate own performance.		e own performance identifying e areas for improvement.
Assessment Guidance			
The following assessment methor criteria are fully covered.	od/s may be used	to ensure all le	earning outcomes and assessment
Assessment Method	Definition Possible Content		Possible Content
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken		Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary

Assessment Method	Definition	Possible Content
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course	Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log



Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary
E-assessment	The use of information technology to assess learners' work	Electronic portfolio E-tests



Title	Create 2D Animation	
Level	Three	
Credit Value	14	
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)	98	
OCN NI Unit Code	CBE645	
Unit Reference No	K/617/8191	
<i>Unit purpose and aim(s):</i> This unit will enable the I	earner to be able to create a 2D animation.	
Learning Outcomes	Assessment Criteria	
1. Be able to organise and back up assets.	<ol> <li>Summarise the main file types utilised in 2D animation and their uses.</li> <li>Perform scene preparation with assets to prepare for 2D animation.</li> <li>Explain and demonstrate how to organise and back up assets for ease of retrieval.</li> </ol>	
<ol> <li>Be able to evaluate the requirements of the animation in order to create a series of key frames.</li> </ol>	<ul> <li>2.1. Determine key frame requirements by analysing character designs, storyboard, animatic and technical and production parameters.</li> <li>2.2. Create a series of key frames to structure the animation that are appropriate to acting and action.</li> </ul>	
3. Be able to rig and test a 2D animated character.	3.1. Create, rig and test at least one animated 2D character to ensure fitness for purpose and revise as required.	
<ol> <li>Be able to create, render and store 2D animations.</li> </ol>	<ul> <li>4.1. Create an animation of at least two minutes in duration in line with given storyboard and animatic.</li> <li>4.2. Render animation at appropriate resolution for compositing.</li> <li>4.3. Review 2D animation identifying possible areas for improvement, taking into account feedback from stakeholders.</li> <li>4.4. Prepare, organise and back up files in line with production requirements.</li> </ul>	
5. Be able to evaluate own performance.	5.1. Evaluate own performance identifying possible areas for improvement.	
Assessment Guidance		
The following assessment method/s may be used to ensure all learning outcomes and assessment		

Assessment Method	Definition	Possible Content
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course	Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion



Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log
Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary
E-assessment	The use of information technology to assess learners' work	Electronic portfolio E-tests



Title		Render Anim	nation
Level		Three	
Credit Value		4	
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)		28	
OCN NI Unit Code		CBE654	
Unit Reference No		M/617/8208	
<i>Unit purpose and aim(s):</i> This ur	nit will enable the I	earner to be a	ble to render an animation.
Learning Outcomes		Assessmen	
<ol> <li>Be able to evaluate product to inform the rendering of an</li> </ol>		technic includir renderi	te briefs, components, scene files, al and production parameters ng software choice to inform the ng of an animation.
2. Be able to determine appro settings.	priate render	the leng and che 2.2. Determ require flexibilit 2.3. Apply n	ort sequence renders to determine gth of time required for rendering eck for errors. ine render settings that gain the d appearance and create sufficient ty for compositing. ender settings that enable the d degree of realism.
3. Be able to render animations.		3.1. Apply s meet p accoun revise a	settings and prioritise renders to roduction requirements, taking into t feedback from stakeholders and as required. ate render times and storage space
Assessment Guidance The following assessment method/s may be used to ensure all learning outcomes and assessment criteria are fully covered.			-
Assessment Method	Definition		Possible Content
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course		Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge		Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log
Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course		Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary
E-assessment	The use of inforr technology to as learners' work	mation	Electronic portfolio E-tests



THE			
Title Level		Edit Animatio	חכ
Credit Value		4	
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)		28	
OCN NI Unit Code		CBE653	
Unit Reference No		K/617/8207	
<i>Unit purpose and aim(s):</i> This ur	nit will enable the l	earner to be a	ble to edit animations.
Learning Outcomes		Assessmen	t Criteria
<ol> <li>Be able to determine anima requirements to enable the sound track.</li> </ol>		analysi visual r produc 1.2. Demon track so animato	ine the animation requirements by ng briefs, specifications, scripts, eferences and technical and tion parameters. strate how to break down the sound to that it is appropriate for given ed lip-sync and to highlight different or instruments.
2. Be able to create bar sheets sheets, test and adjust sour material to meet animation r	nd and picture	<ul> <li>2.1. Create set out</li> <li>2.2. Test re quality produc</li> <li>2.3. Adjust through</li> </ul>	bar sheet or exposure sheets that appropriate timelines for production. cordings to monitor and control the of the edited animation against tion requirements. sound and picture material nout the production to meet ments ensuring sound and images
3. Be able to manage animation resources.		with pro logs, vo 3.2. Prepare	e sound and image assets in line oduction requirements including bice and sound track breakdowns. e and store files in line with tion requirements.
Assessment Guidance			
The following assessment method/s may be used to ensure all learning outcomes and assessment criteria are fully covered.			
Assessment Method	Definition		Possible Content
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course		Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledgeRecord of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log		



Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary
E-assessment	The use of information technology to assess learners' work	Electronic portfolio E-tests



# **Quality Assurance of Centre Performance**

## **External Verification**

All OCN NI recognised centres are subject to External Verification. External verification visits and monitoring activities will be conducted annually to confirm continued compliance with the conditions of recognition, review the centre's risk rating for the qualification and to assure OCN NI of the maintenance of the integrity of the qualification.

The External Verifier will review the delivery and assessment of this qualification. This will include the review of a sample of assessment evidence and evidence of the internal verification of assessment and assessment decisions. This will form the basis of the EV report and will inform OCN NI's annual assessment of centre compliance and risk. The External Verifier is appointed by OCN NI.

### **Standardisation**

As a process, standardisation is designed to ensure consistency and promote good practice in understanding and application of standards. Standardisation events:

- make qualified statements about the level of consistency in assessment across centres delivering a qualification
- make statements on the standard of evidence that is required to meet the assessment criteria for units in a qualification
- make recommendations on assessment practice
- produce advice and guidance for the assessment of units
- identify good practice in assessment and internal verification

Centres offering units of an OCN NI qualification must attend and contribute assessment materials and learner evidence for standardisation events if requested.

OCN NI will notify centres of the nature of sample evidence required for standardisation events (this will include assessment materials, learner evidence and relevant assessor and internal verifier documentation). OCN NI will make standardisation summary reports available and correspond directly with centres regarding event outcomes.



# **Administration**

### Registration

A centre must register learners within 20 working days of commencement of this qualification.

### Certification

Certificates will be issued to centres within 20 working days of receipt of correctly completed results marksheets. It is the responsibility of the centre to ensure that certificates received from OCN NI are held securely and distributed to learners promptly and securely.

#### Charges

OCN NI publishes all up to date qualification fees in its Fees and Invoicing Policy document. Further information can be found on the centre login area of the OCN NI website.

### **Equality, Fairness and Inclusion**

OCN NI has considered the requirements of equalities legislation in developing the specification for this qualification. For further information and guidance relating to access to fair assessment and the OCN NI Reasonable Adjustments and Special Considerations policies, centres should refer to the OCN NI website.

#### **Retention of Evidence**

OCN NI has published guidance for centres on the retention of evidence. Details are provided in the OCN NI Centre Handbook and can be accessed via the OCN NI website.



## **OCN NI Level 3 Suite of Creative Arts and Digital Technologies**

#### **OCN NI Level 3 Award in Creative Arts and Digital Technologies** 603/2325/5

Qualification Number:

Operational start date:	01 September 2017
Operational end date:	30 June 2030
Certification end date:	30 June 2033

# **OCN NI Level 3 Certificate in Creative Arts and Digital Technologies**

Qualification Number: 601/6359/8

Operational start date:	01 July 2015
Operational end date:	30 June 2030
Certification end date:	30 June 2033

### **OCN NI Level 3 Extended Certificate in Creative Arts and Digital Technologies**

Qualification Number:	603/3321/2
Operational start date:	15 June 2018
Onerational and data	20 June 2020

Operational end date:	30 June 2030
Certification end date:	30 June 2033

## **OCN NI Level 3 Diploma in Creative Arts and Digital Technologies**

Qualification Number: 603/0241/0

Operational start date:	01 September 2016
Operational end date:	30 June 2030
Certification end date:	30 June 2033

Open College Network Northern Ireland (OCN NI) Sirius House 10 Heron Road Belfast BT3 9LE

Phone: 028 90463990 Web: www.ocnni.org.uk